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The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
180 East Broad Street
Columbus, OH 43215

April 9, 2009

Re: OHIO POWER COMPANY

Gentlemen:

Enclosed on behalf of Ohio Power Company are one executed and five conformed copies of an
Application for authority to authority to issue and sell promissory notes, for authority to issue and
sell promissory notes, to finance portions of environmental and pollution control facilities, to enter
into loan agreements or installment agreements of sale with the Ohio Air Quality Development
Authority, to refinance the terms of loan agreements or installment agreements of sale with Marshall
County, West Virginia, to enter into interest rate management agreements and to issue short-term

notes and other evidences of indebtedness.

An additional copy of the Application is also enclosed. Please indicate by file-stamp the
Commission's receipt and return the extra copy so marked to the undersigned.

. _Very truly yours,
C""‘bf’/f \
ﬁ:\%‘; C. House
DCH/jTh

Enclosures

Ty 4 L - Vi [OE, T A % ¥ s

This is to Cartiry Yhot e itams

acourate ard cosplete FEDY Lion
LTS T e _.'_"F 2oy a . ) o

docunent deliversd i otha x B SOl

Technician__ MLMLM*"@ Procisse

Doc #384455.vi Date: 4/9/2008 9.02 AM



Before
THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

In the Matter of the application of : _

OHIO POWER COMPANY : Case No. 09- i/ 3—EL-AIS
for authority to issue and sell promissory notes,

for authority to finance portions of

environmental and pollution control facilities, to

enter into loan agreements or installment

agreements of sale with the Ohio Air Quality

Development Authority, to refinance the terms of -
loan agreements or installment agreements of sale T2 %
with Marshall County, West Virginia, to enter : 1’%
into interest rate management agreements and to ’;3)
issue short-term notes and other evidences of T \
indebtedness : . w2
........................................... ( ’f
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APPLICATION AND STATEMENT =
TO THE HONORABLE

THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO:
Your Applicant, Ohic Power Company, respectfully shows:

FIRST: Applicant is an Ohio corporation engaged in the business of supplying to
consumers within the State of Ohio electricity for light, heat and power purposes and is a public
utility as defined by the Ohio Revised Code.

SECOND:  Applicant’s authorized and outstanding capital stock as of December 31,
2008 was as follows:

D) 40,000,000 shares of Common Stock without par value authorized, of
which there were 27,952,473 shares issued and outstanding;
2) 3,762,403 Cumulative Preferred Shares (par value $100) authorized, of

which the following were issued and outstanding: a 4-1/2% Series consisting of 97,373 shares; a
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4.40% Series consisting of 31,482 shares; a 4.08% Series consisting of 14,595 shares; and a
4.20% Series consisting of 22,824 shares; and

3) 4,000,000 Cumulative Preferred Shares (par value $25) authorized, of
which there were none issued and outstanding.

THIRD: The outstanding funded debt of Applicant as of December 31, 2008
consisted of $3,065,842,460 of unsecured long-term notes and other long-term debt (including
capital leases), all of which notes were issued pursuant to former orders of your Honorable
Commission. Applicant had $133,887,073 of short-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2008,

FOURTH:  Attached hereto as Exhibit A are financial statements, including a balance
sheet and statements of income and retained earnings of the Applicant as of December 31, 2008.

FIFTH; To provide Applicant with necessary capital for the purposes set forth
herein, Applicant proposes, with the consent and approval of your Honorable Commission, to
issue and sell, through May 31, 2010, unsecured promissory notes (“Notes”) in the aggregate
principal amount of up to $500,000,000. The Notes may be issued in the form of either Senior or
Subordinated Debentures (including Junior Subordinated Debentures) or other promissory notes.
In addition, Applicant may issue one or more unsecured promissory notes (“AEP Notes™) to its
parent American Electric Power Company, Inc. (“AEP”), provided that the aggregate amount of
Notes and AEP Notes issued will not exceed $500,000,000. The Notes and the AEP Notes will
be issued in accordance with the transition plans for Applicant approved by this Commission in
Case No. 99-1730-EL-ETP and the rate stabilization plan for Applicant approved by this
Commission in Case No. 04-169-EL-UNC.

The Notes will mature in not less than 9 months and not more than 60 years. The

interest rate of the Notes may be fixed or variable and will be sold by (i) competitive bidding; (ii)
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through negotiation with underwriters or agents; or (iii) by direct placement with a commercial
bank or other institutional investor. Any fixed rate Note will be sold by the Applicant at a yield
to maturity which shall not exceed by more than 7.5% the yield to maturity on United States
Treasury obligations of comparable maturity at the time of pricing. Any variable rate Note will
be sold by the Applicant at a yield to maturity which shall not exceed by more than 7.5% the
yield to maturity on United States Treasury obligations of comparable maturity at the time of
pricing, and the initial interest rate on any variable rate Note will not exceed 10% per annum. If
it is deemed advisable, the Notes may be provided some form of credit enhancement, including
but not limited to a letter of credit, bond insurance, standby purchase agreement or surety bond.
The commission payable to agents or underwriters will not exceed 3.5% of the principal amount
of the Notes sold. Applicant will agree to specific redemption provisions, if any, including
redemption premiums, at the time of the pricing. The interest rates and maturity dates of any
AEP Notes would be designed to parallel the cost of the capital of AEP to comply with any
applicable law or regulation. In addition, the interest rate and maturity parameters governing the
Notes would apply to the AEP Notes.

In connection with the sale of unsecured Notes, Applicant may agree to restrictive
covenants which would prohibit it from, among other things: (i) creating or permitting o exist
any liens on its property, with certain stated exceptions; (ii) creating indebtedness except as
specified therein; (iii) failing to maintain a specified financial condition; (iv) entering into certain
mergers, consolidations and dispositions of assets; and (v) permitting certain events to oceur in
connection with pension plans. Applicant may permit the holder of the Notes to require

Applicant to prepay them after certain specified events, including an ownership change.
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Applicant may have the right to defer payment of interest on the Junior
Subordinated Debentures for up to five years. However, Applicant may not declare and pay
dividends on its outstanding stock if payments under the Junior Subordinated Debentures are
deferred. The payment of principal, premium and interest on Junior Subordinated Debentures
will be subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in {ull of senior indebtedness.

SIXTH: The unsecured Notes (other than Junior Subordinated Debentures) will be
issued under an Indenture dated as of September 1, 1997, as supplemented and amended, or an
Indenture dated as of February 1, 2003, as supplemented and amended, each as to be further
supplemented and amended by one or more Supplemental Indentures, Company Orders or
equivalent documentation. Applicant also may enter into a new Indenture. A copy of the most
recent Company Order utilized by the Applicant is attached hereto as Exhibit B. It is proposed
that a similar form of Company Order, Supplemental Indenture or equivalent documentation be
used for one or more series of the unsecured Notes other than Junior Subordinated Debentures
(except for provisions such as interest rate, maturity, redemption terms and certain administrative
matters).

The Junior Subordinated Debentures will be issued under an Indenture, dated as
of September 1, 1995, as supplemented and amended, and as to be further supplemented and
amended by one or more Supplemental Indentures. A copy of the most recent Supplemental
Indenture for Junior Subordinated Debentures utilized by the Applicant is attached as Exhibit C.
It is proposed that a similar form of Supplemental Indenture be used for one or more series of the
Junior Subordinated Debentures (except for provisions such as interest rate, maturity, redemption

terms and certain administrative matters).
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SEVENTH: Applicant proposes, with the consent and approval of your Honorable
Commission, to utilize interest rate management techniques and enter into Interest Rate
Management Agreements. Such authority will allow Applicant sufficient alternatives and
flexibility when striving to reduce its effective interest cost and manage interest cost on
financings.

A Interest Rate Management Agreements

The Interest Rate Management Agreements will be products commonly used in

tE 1

, “floors”, “options”,
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today’s capital markets, consisting of “interest rate swaps”, “caps”, “collars”
or hedging products such as “forwards” or “futures”, or similar products, the purpose of which is
to manage and minimize interest costs. Applicant expects to enter into these agreements with
counterparties that are highly rated financial institutions. The transactions will be for a fixed
period and a stated principal amount, and may be for underlying fixed or variable obligations of

Applicant.

B. Pricing Parameters

Applicant proposes that the pricing parameters for Interest Rate Management
Agreements be governed by the parameters contained herein. Fees and commissions in
connection with any Interest Rate Management Agreement will be in addition to the above
parameters and will not exceed 1.00% of the amount of the underlying obligation involved.
C. Accounting
Applicant proposes to account for these transactions in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles.
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D Commission Authorization

Since market opportunities for these interest rate management alternatives are
transitory, Applicant must be able to execute interest rate management transactions when the
opportunity arises to obtain the most competitive pricing. Thus, Applicant seeks approval to
enter into any or all of the described transactions within the parameters discussed above prior to
the time Applicant reaches agreement with respect to the terms of such transactions.

If Applicant utilizes Interest Rate Management Agreements, Applicant’s annual
long-term interest charges could change. The authorization of the Interest Rate Management
Agreements consistent with the parameters herein in no way relieves Applicant of its
responsibility to obtain the best terms available for the product selected and, therefore, it is
appropriate and reasonable for this Commission to authorize Applicant to agree to such terms
and prices consistent with said parameters.

The authorization which Applicant requests herein to enter into Inferest Rate
Management Agreements is consistent with the authority granted by your Honorable
Commission to Applicant in Case No. 02-2629-EL-AIS.

EIGHTH: The issuance of the Notes and the AEP Notes will be effected in
compliance with all applicable indenture, chatter and other standards relating to debt and equity
securities and capitalization ratios of the Applicant.

NINTH: All proceeds realized from the sale of the Notes and the AEP Notes by the
Applicant, together with any other funds which may become available to Applicant, will be used
to pay at maturity or refund long-term debt and cumulative preferred stock, to repay short-term
indebtedness used to pay at maturity or refund long-term debt and cumulative preferred stock, to

fund its construction program and for working capital and other corporate purposes.
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Applicant proposes to treat any premiums on reacquisition of these or any other
series of long-term indebtedness as an issuance expense of the Notes and all unamortized costs
associated with the serics of long-term indebtedness reacquired (e.g., premium, discount,
expense or loss on reacquisition of a prior issue or series), if any, as an issuance expense of the
Notes to be amortized over the life of the Notes. Applicant intends to utilize deferred tax
accounting for the premium expense, in order to properly match the amortization of the expense
and the related tax effect. The authorization which Applicant requests herein regarding its
treatment of premium expenses is consistent with the authority granted by Your Honorable
Commission to Applicant in Case No. 02-2629-EL-AIS.

TENTH: The actual cost of the Notes and the AEP Notes will be determined at the
time of the sale or sales thereof. The net effect on revenue requirements resulting from their
issnance will be reflected in the determination of required revenue in rate proceedings in which
all factors affecting rates are taken into account according to law.

* ok

ELEVENTH: To provide Applicant with necessary capital for financing portions of
environmental and pollution control facilities at Unit 3 of Amos Generating Station in Putnam
County, West Virginia (the “Project”), Applicant proposes, with the consent and approval of your
Honorable Commission, to either transfer the Project to the West Virginia Economic
Development Autherity {the “Authority™), and for Applicant to acquire the Project from the
Authority, or obtain a loan from the Authority for the Project, all pursuant to a loan or
installment sale agreement between Applicant and the Authority, to assume certain obligations
under such agreements in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $125,000,000 in connection

with the proposed issuance of one or more series of Solid Waste Disposal Facilities Bonds (the
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“Bonds™) to be issued by the Authority, to be appropriately designated and to be issued on or prior
to May 31, 2010. The proceeds of the Bonds would be loaned to Applicant by the Authority to
provide financing for a portion of the Project, a description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D.

In connection with the Bonds, Applicant would assume certain obligations under
one or more loan or installment payment agreements with the Authority, and may enter into one or
more guaranty agreements, bond insurance agreements and other similar undertakings guaranteeing
repayment of any part of the obligations under one or more series of Bonds for the benefit of the
holders of such bonds.

TWELFTH: The Authority has the power, pursuant to the provisions of the West Virginia
Development Authority Act, Chapter 31, Article 15 of the West Virginia Code, to enter into the
{ransactions contemplated by the Loan Agreement (as defined below), and to carry out its
obligations thereunder by issuing and selling the Bonds and lending the proceeds from the sale of
such Bonds to Applicant to finance the acquisition and construction of certain environmental and
pollution control facilities, being within the boundaries of Putnam County, West Virginia.
Applicant expects the proceeds to be deposited into a trust account until disbursed for construction
costs. In that instance, Applicant will submit periodic disbursement requests for the reimbursement
of qualified construction costs previously incurred and paid for by Applicant.

THIRTEENTH: The Bonds would be issued pursuant to one or more indentures (each an
“Indenture™), between the Authority and a Trustee. The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds
would be loaned to Applicant pursuant to one or more loan or installment payment agreements
between the Authority and Applicant (collectively the “Loan Agreement™). The payments to be
made by Applicant under the Loan Agreement for one or more series of Bonds, together with

other funds available for that purpose, would need to be sufficient to pay the priocipal, purchase
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price or premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds. The Loan Agreement and the payments to
be made by Applicant pursuant thereto will be assigned to the Trustee to secure the payment of
the principal and interest on the related Bonds. Upon issuance of a series of Bonds, Applicant
may issue one or more guarantees or similar agreements in favor of the Trustee guaranteeing
repayment of all or any part of the obligations under such Bonds for the benefit of the holders of
such Bonds. Additionally, if it is deemed advisable, any series of Bonds as described herein may
be provided some form of credit enhancement, including but not limited fo a letter of credit, bond
insurance, standby purchase agreement or surety bond.

The Bonds would be sold in one or more underwritten public offerings, negotiated
sales, or private placement transactions utilizing the customary and appropriate documentation.
While Applicant will not be a party to the underwriting arrangements for the Bonds, the Loan
Agreement will provide that the Bonds shall have such terms as shall be specified by Applicant.

FOURTEENTH: The price, maturity date(s), interest rate(s), and the redemption
provisions and other terms and provisions of each series of Bonds (including, in the event all or a
portion of the Bonds initially bear a variable rate of interest, the method for determining the
interest rate) would be determined on the basis of negotiations between Applicant, the Authority,
and the purchasers of such Bonds. The Loan Agreement will provide that each loan payment or
installment of the purchase price for the Project payable by Applicant will be in such an amount
(together with other moneys held by the Trustee under the Indenture for that purpose) as will
enable the Authority to pay, when due, (i) the interest on all Bonds and any additional bonds and
refunding bonds issued under the Indenture; (ii) the stated maturities of the principal of all Bonds
and any additional bonds and refunding bonds issued under the Indeniure; and (iii} amounts,

including any accrued interest, payable in connection with any redemption of the Bonds and any
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additional bonds or refunding bonds issued under the Indenture. The Loan Agreement also will -
obligate Applicant to pay the fees and charges of the Trustee, as well as certain administrative
expenses of the Authority. Applicant will not agree, without further order of this Commission, to
the issuance of any Bonds (i) if the stated maturity of any such Bond shall be more than forty
years; (ii) if the fixed rate of interest to be borne by any such Bond shall exceed 10% per annum
or the initial rate of interest to be borne by any fluctuating rate shall exceed 10% per annum; or
(iii) if the compensation payable to one or more underwriters exceeds 5% of the principal
amount thereof. The discount from the initial public offering price of any such Bond shall not
exceed 5% of the principal amount thereof and the initial public offering price of any such Bond
shall not be less than 95% of the principal amount thereof, The commission payable to agents or
underwriters will not exceed 3.5% of the principal amount of the Bonds sold.

Because of the historical spread between long-term fixed interest rates and short-
term rates, all or a portion of the Bonds may be issued initially with an interest rate that
fluctuates on a weeckly, monthly or other basis, as determined from time to time by Applicant,
including the issuance of auction mode Bonds. Applicant would reserve the option to convert
any variable rate Bonds at a later date to other interest rate modes, including a fixed rate of
interest. Bonds that bear interest at a variable rate (the “Variable Rate Bonds™) also may be
issued subject to tender by the holders thereof for redemption or purchase. In order to provide
funds to pay the purchase price of such tendered Variable Rate Bonds, Applicant would enter
into one or more Remarketing Agreements with one or more remarketing agents whereby the
remarketing agent would use its best efforts to remarket such tendered Variable Rate Bonds to
other purchasers at a price equal to the purchase price of such Variable Rate Bonds, which will

be 100% of the par amount of such Variable Rate Bonds. Thus, to the extent Variable Rate
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Bonds are issued, the documentation will be similar to previous Bonds that were issued with a
variable interest rate and it is expected that the fees of the remarketing agent will be
approximately 25 basis points,

Also, in the event that Variable Rate Bonds are issued, Applicant may enter into
one or more liquidity or ¢redit facilities (the “Bank Facility”) with a bank or banks (the “Bank™)
to be selected by Applicant. The Bank Facility would be a credit agreement designed to provide
Applicant with immediately available funds for general corporate purposes, including making
payments with respect to any Variable Rate Bonds that have been tendered for purchase and not
remarketed or allow Applicant to obtain letters of credit. Pursvant to the Bank Facility,
Applicant may be required to execute and deliver to the Bank a note (the “Bank Facility Note™)
evidencing Applicant’s obligation to the Bank under the Bank Facility.

In order to obtain terms and conditions more favorable to Applicant than those
provided in the Bank Facility or to provide for additional liquidity or credit support to enhance
the marketability of the Variable Rate Bonds, Applicant may desire to be able to replace the
Bank Facility with (or to initially use) one or more substitute liquidity support and/or credit
support facilities (the instrument providing the liquidity support and/or credit support and any
subsequent replacement support facility thereof, including any replacement facility which would
replace a replacement facility, is hereinafter referred to as a “Facility™) with one or more banks,
insurance companies or other financial institutions to be selected by Applicant from time to time
(each such financial institution hereinafter referred to as a “Facility Provider”). A Facility may
be in the nature of a letter of credit, revolving credit agreement, standby credit agreement, bond
purchase agreement or other similar arrangement designed to provide liquidity and/or credit

support for the Variable Rate Bonds. Tt is contemplated that, in the event the Variable Rate
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Bonds are converted to bear interest at a fixed rate to maturity, the Bank Facility (if not already
replaced or terminated) or, if applicable, the Facility (unless earlier terminated) may be
terminated, in whole or in part, following the date of conversion of such series of Variable Rate
Bonds. The estimated cost of the financing does not include expenses incurred for entering into
any Facility; however the impact on the overall cost of the financing would be approximately
[90] basis points.

In connection with any Facility, Applicant may enter into one or more credit or
similar agreements {“Credit Agreements™) with the Facility Provider or providers of such
Facility, which would contain the terms of reimbursement or payment to be made by Applicant
to the Facility Providers for amounts advanced by the Facility Providers under the particular
Facility. Depending on the exact nature of a Facility, Applicant may be required to execute and
deliver to the Facility Provider a promissory note {each such note hereinafter referred to as a
“Facility Note™) evidencing Applicant’s repayment obligations to the Facility Provider under
the related Credit Agreement; and the Trustee under the Indenture for the Variable Rate Bonds
may be authorized, upon the terms set forth in such Indenture and any Credit Agreement, to draw
upon the Facility for the purpose of paying the purchase price of Variable Rate Bonds tendered
or required to be tendered for purchase in accordance with the terms of the Indenture which are
not remarketed by the remarketing agent as provided in the remarketing agreement and/or for the
purpose of paying accrued interest on the Variable Rate Bonds when due and paying principal,
whether at maturity, on redemption, acceleration or otherwise.

The terms of each Facility, each Credit Agreement and each Facility Note would
be negotiated by Applicant with the respective Bank or Facility Provider and would be the most

favorable terms that can be negotiated by Applicant. The aggregate outstanding principal
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amount of the obligations of Applicant at any time under the Facility and the Credit Agreements
and related notes set forth in the immediately preceding sentence will not exceed the original
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued but unpaid interest and premium, if any,
on such Bonds.

FIFTEENTH: Applicant understands that the Bonds can be issued under circumstances
that the interest on such Bonds will be excludable from gross income under the provisions of
Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (except for interest on any such
Bonds during a period in which it is held by a person who is a substantial user of the Project or a
related person), and that while it is not possible to predict precisely the interest rate which may
be obtained by the Authority in connection with the issuance of bonds having such
characteristics, the annual interest rate on tax exempt obligations historically has been, and can
be expected under current circumstances to be, .75% to 1.75% or more lower than the rates of
obligations of like tenor and comparable quality, interest on which is fully subject to Federal
income tax.

SIXTEENTH: All proceeds realized from the sale of the Bonds, together with any other
funds which may become available to Applicant, will be used to fund the construction of the
Project.

SEVENTEENTH: The actual cost of the Bonds will be determined at the time of the sale or
sales thereof. The net effect on revenue requirements resulting from their issuance will be reflected
in the determination of required revenue in rate proceedings in which all factors affecting rates are
taken into account according to law. The proposed financing will be made in compliance with the
Applicant’s electric transition plan approved by the Commission in Case No. 99-1730-EL-ETP and

the rate stabilization plan for Applicant approved by this Commission in Case No. 04-169-EL-UNC.,
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Applicant believes that the proposed issuance of the Bonds will be in the best inferests of
Applicant’s consumers and investors and consistent with sound and prudent financial policy.
£ % %
EIGHTEENTH: There are currenily outstanding the following series of pollution
control revenue refunding bonds issued by Marshall County, West Virginia (the “Authority”) and
authorized in previous orders by this Commission under various orders for the benefit of Applicant
(the “Marshall Bonds™):
(i1) $35,000,000 Marshall County, West Virginia Revenue Refunding Bonds
(Ohio Power Company Kammer Plant Project) Series F due April 1, 2022
[CUSIP No. 572287AU4].

(iii) $50,000,000 Marshall County, West Virginia Revenue Refunding Bonds
(Ohio Power Company Project) Series E due June 1, 2022 [CUSIP No.
572287A89]. :

The Marshall Bonds were initially issued in the Auction Rate Mode. When the Marshall
Bonds were in the Auction Rate Mode, an auction agent conducted auctions at certain periods of
less than 365 days (usually 7-, 28- or 35-day periods) to set the interest rate at which the Marshall
Bonds would bear interest for the next period in accordance with auction procedures that are set
forth in the indenture governing the Marshail Bonds.

NINETEENTH: All of the Marshall Bonds are insufed by a financial guaranty
insurance policy issued by AMBAC Assurance Corporation (“AMBAC”), a municipal bond
insurer, and the Marshall Bonds were rated by the rating agencies (Moody’s Investors Service,
Standard & Poor’s, a Division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. and Fifch Ratings) based on the
rating of the bond insurer. As a result of the subprime mortgage crisis, these bond insurers have

been downgraded by one or more of the rating agencies. This caused a lowering of the ratings on

the Marshall Bonds and decreased the number of interested purchasers of the Marshall Bonds., This,
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among other factors, resulted in an increase in the interest rate on the Marshall Bonds. In addition,
these factors led to an increase in failed auctions where there were not enough qualifying bids to
purchase the bonds being auctioned, which also increased the interest rate of the Marshall Bonds. If
there had been two or more successive failed auctions, and there had not been a successiul auction
for 90 days after the first failed auction, the interest rate on the Marshall Bonds would have
increased to 13.0%.

TWENTIETH: The terms of the Marshall Bonds provide that they may be converted
from one interest rate mode to another interest rate mode (daily, weekly, commercial paper, long-
term fixed rate, auction rate). While such conversions result in a change in interest rate modes, they
are merely remarketing of the Marshall Bonds pursvant to the existing terms of the Marshall Bonds
and are not refundings or reissuances of new securities and do not require Commission approval.

TWENTY FIRST:  On May 5, 2008, Applicant clected to convert the Marshall Bonds to
a variable weekly rate in order to reduce the interest rate {5.042% at that time). The holders of the
Marshall Bonds were required to tender their bonds to Applicant upon such conversion. Applicant
has held the Marshall Bonds since the cbnversion as Applicant cannot remarket the Marshall Bonds
as long as AMBAC insures the Marshall Bonds. Applicant can remove AMBAC as insurer by
refunding and reissuing the Marshall Bonds as new designated series.

TWENTY SECOND: Applicant requests the authority through May 31, 2010, to refund any
or all of the Marshall Bonds with Refunding Bonds. The Refunding Bonds would bear inferest at a
long-~term fixed inferest rate, or a variable rate mode such as a daily, weekly or commercial paper
mode. The Refunding Bonds would be reissued pursuant to the indentures under which the current

Marshall Bonds were issued and under the agreements of sale or loan agreements previously
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approved by the Commission or under new indentures, agreements of sale or loan agreements
having the same basic provisions as those previously approved by this Commission.

TWENTY THIRD: The price, maturity date(s), interest rate(s) and the redemption
provisions and other terms of each series of Refunding Bonds (including the method of determining
a variable rate of interest) would be determined by the Applicant, the issuer and the purchasers of
such Refunding Bonds. The Refunding Bonds may be issued initially with an interest rate that
fluctuates on a weekly, monthly or other basis or on a fixed rate basis. Applicant reserves the right,
from time to time, to convert the Refunding Bonds to other interest rate modes.

TWENTY FOURTH: It is contemplated that each series of the Refunding Bonds will be
sold pursuant to arrangements with an underwriter or a group of underwriters. Applicant will not
agree, without further Order of this Commission, to the issuance of any series of Refunding Bonds
if (i) the stated maturity of any such Refunding Bonds shall be more than 40 years; (ii) the initial
fixed rate of interest to be borne by any such Refunding Bonds shall exceed 10% or the initial rate
of interest to be born by any such Refunding Bonds bearing a variable rate of interest shall exceed
10%; (iii) the discount on the proceeds of the issuance of the Refunding Bonds will exceed 5% of
the principal amount thereof; and (iv) the initial public offering price of any such Refunding Bond is
less than 95% of the principal amount thereof.

TWENTY FIFTH:  Ifit is deemed advisable, Applicant may provide some form of credit
enhancement for any of the Refunding Bonds, such as a letter of credit or surety bond, or other
insurance and Applicant may pay a fee in connection therewith.

TWENTY SIXTH:  Applicant presently proposes, if market conditions warrant, in
accordance with the terms of the applicable agreements of sale and loan agreements, to formally

request the Authority to issue and sell Refunding Bonds to refund the outstanding Marshall Bonds.
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TWENTY SEVENTH. All proceeds realized from the sale of the Refunding
Bonds, together with any other funds which may become available to Applicant, will be used to
refund the Marshall Bonds.

TWENTY EIGHTH: The actual cost of the Refunding Bonds will be determined at the
time of the sale or sales thereof. The net effect on revenue requirements resulting from their
issuance will be reflected in the determination of required revenue in rate proceedings in which all
factors affecting rates are taken into account according to law.

% % %

TWENTY NINTH: Applicant hereby requests authorization to continue to participate in
the AEP System Utility Money Pool (“Money Pool”)! as set forth in this Application and to
make short-term borrowings up to $600,000,000 from the Money Pool from time to time through
May 31, 2010.

A. Background and Request.

In Case No. 08-590-EL-AIS, this Commission authorized Applicant to participate
in the Money Pool and to make short-term borrowing up to $600,000,000 from the Money Pool
from time to time through June 30, 2009. Each Participant, otiler than AEP and AEP Utilities,
makes unsecured short-term borrowings from the Money Pool and contributes surplus funds to

the Money Pool. AEP and AEP Utilities may only contribute funds to the Money Pool and are

! In addition to Applicant, the following companies participate in the Money Pool: American
Electric Power Company, Inc. (“AEP”), AEP Generating Company, AEP Texas Central Company, AEP
Texas North Company, AEP Utilities, Inc. (“AEP Utilities™), Appalachian Power Company, Columbus
Southern Power Company, Indiana Michigan Power Company, Kentucky Power Company, Kingsport Power
Company, Public Service Company of Oklahoma, Southwestern Electric Power Company, Wheeling Power
Company, American Electric Power Service Corporation (“AEPSC”), Cedar Coal Company, Central
Appalachian Coal Company, Central Coal Company, Colomet, Inc., Simco, Inc., Southern Appalachian Coal
Company, Blackhawk Coal Company, Conesville Coal Preparation Company, Dolet Hills Lignite Company
LLC, Franklin Real Estate Company, and Indiana Franklin Realty, Inc. (“Participants™).
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not authorized to borrow funds from the Money Pool. A copy of the AEP System Utility Money
Pool Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit E.

B Current Operations.

All short-term borrowing needs of the Participants are met by funds in the Money
Pool to the extent such funds are available. Applicant has the right to borrow from the Money
Paol from time to time, subject to the availability of funds; provided, however, that the aggregate
amount of all loans requested by Applicant shall not exceed its short-term borrowing limit of
$600,000,000. Applicant is not obligated to borrow from the Money Pool if lower cost funds can
be obtained from its own external borrowing. While AEP does not borrow funds from the
Money Pool or any Participant, AEP does contribute funds to the Money Pool.

AEPSC acts as administrative agent of the Money Pool. Each Participant and AEP
determine the amount of funds it has available for contribution to the Money Pool. The
determination of whether a Participant at any time has surplus funds, or should lend such funds to
the Money Pool, is made by such Participant’s freasurer, any assistant treasurer, or by a designee
thereof, on the basis of cash flow projections and other relevant factors, in such Participant's sole
discretion. Each Participant may withdraw any of its funds at any time upon notice to AEPSC.

C. Sources of Funds.

The Money Pool is composed from time to time of funds from the folowing
sources: (i) surplus funds of any of the Participants; (ii) surplus funds of AEP; (iii) short-term
borrowings by AEP. All debt issued in connection with the Money Pool is unsecured.

AEPSC administers the Money Pool by matching up, to the extent possible, short-
term cash surpluses and loan requirements of the various Participants. Participants’ requests for

short-term loans are met first from surplus funds of other Participants which are available to the
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Money Pool. To the extent that Participant contributions of surplus funds to the Money Pool are
insufficient to meet Participant requests for short-term loans, AEP may contribute surplus corporate
funds to the extent available or borrowings may be made from external sources. Funds which are
loaned from Participants into the Money Pool which are not required to satisfy borrowing needs of
other Participants are imvested on the behalf of the Money Pool in one or more short-term
instruments,

D. Use of Proceeds.

The Money Pool makes funds available to Participants for the interim financing of
their capital expenditure programs and their other working capital needs and to repay previous
borrowings incurred for such purposes. External borrowings will not be made unless there are
no surplus funds in the treasuries of the Participants sufficient to meet borrowing needs. Each
Participant borrows pro rata from each funding source in the same proportion that the amount of
funds provided by that funding source bears to the total amount of short-term funds available to
the Money Pool.

E Interest Rate.

The interest rate applicable on any day to then outstanding loans through the
Money Pool is the composite weighted average daily effective cost incurred by AEP for short-
term borrowings from external sources for the Money Pool. If there are no borrowings
outstanding then the rate is the certificate of deposit yield equivalent of the 30-day Federal
Reserve "A2/P2" Non Financial Commercial Paper Composite Rate ("Composite"), or if no
composite is established for that day then the applicable rate is the Composite for the next

preceding day for which the Composite is established.
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Each Participant receiving a loan must repay the principal amount of such loan,
together with all interest accrued thereon, on demand and in any event not later than the then-
effective expiration date of the authorization for the operation of the Money Pool. All loans
made through the Money Pool may be prepaid by the borrower without premium or penalty.
If the Money Pool is in an invested position, interest income related to external investments is
calculated daily and allocated back to Participants on the basts of their relative confribution to the

investment pool funds on that date.

20
Doc #384334.v1 Date: 4/6/2009 2:15 PM



WHEREFORE: Applicant prays for authority from your Honorable Commission (i) to issue
unsecured promissory notes (including AEP Notes) in the manner set forth herein in one or more
new series, with a maturity of not less than 9 months and not more than 60 years in principal
amounts of up to $500,000,000, in one or more series, and to apply the proceeds of the sale thereof,
all as proposed and described in this Application; (ii) to enter into Interest Rate Management
Agreements within the parameters proposed and described in this Application, (iii) (a) to either
transfer the Project to the Authority and for Applicant to acquire the Project from the Authority or
obtain a loan from the Authority for the Project and (b) to consummate and carry out the
transactions proposed herein with respect to the financing of the Project and the terms of
Applicant’s Loan Agreement with the Authority, all as proposed and described in this Application;
(iv) to consummate and carry out the transactions proposed herein with respect to the refinancing of
the terms of Applicant’s installment agreements of sale and loan agreements with Marshal County,
West Virginia, all as proposed and described in this Application; and (v) to continue to participate in
the AEP System Ultility Money Pool as set forth in this Application and to make short-term
borrowings up to $600,000,000 from the Money Pool from time to time.

Applicant prays for all other and further relief necessary and appropriate in the
premises.

Respectfully submitted this g day of April, 2009.

OHIO POWER COMPANY

By

Assistant Treasurer
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STATE OF OHIO )
) SS:
COUNTY OF FRANKLIN )

Before me, a Notary Public in and for Franklin County in the State of Ohio,
personally appeared Renee V. Hawkins, Assistant Treasurer of Ohio Power Company, the
Applicant in the foregoing application, and she being duly sworn says that the facts and
allegations herein contained are true to the best of her knowledge and behef J—

Dated: April 9, 2009
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EXHIBIT A
Financial Statements of Applicant as of December 31, 2008
EXHIBIT B

Form of Company Order relating to issuance of unsecured Notes other than Junior
Subordinated Debentures '

EXHIBIT C

Form of Supplemental Indenture relating to issuance of Junior Subordinated Debentures
EXHIBIT D

Description of the Project
EXHIBIT E

AEP System Utility Money Pool Agreement
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OHIO POWER COMPANY CONSOLIDATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

(in thousands)

EXL/é,f‘/@

2008 2007 2006
REVENUES
Electric Generation, Transmission and Disfribution 2,116,797 § 2,019,632 2,006,279
Sales to AEP Affiliates 940,468 757,052 685,343
Other - Affiliated 20,732 22,705 16,775
Other - Nonaffiliated 18,937 14,823 16,478
TOTAL 3,096,934 2,814,212 2,724,875
EXPENSES

Fuel and Other Conswinables Used for Electric Generation 1,190,939 908,317 960,119
Purchased Electricity for Resale 175,429 123,849 100,958
Purchased Electricity from AEP Affiliates 140,686 125,108 113,651
OCther Operation . 414,045 388,745 382,573
Maintenance 213,431 208,675 228,151
Depreciation and Amortization 273,720 335,817 321,954
Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 192,734 193,349 192,178
TOTAL 2,601,884 2,287,860 2,209 584
OPERATING INCOME 495,050 526,352 425,291
Other Income (Expense):

Interest Income 6,515 1,366 2,363
Carrying Costs Income 16,306 14,472 13,841
Alowance for Equity Funds Used During Construction 3,073 2,311 2,556
Interest Expense ~ (175,202) (127,352) (97,084)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 345,745 417,149 346,967
Income Tax Expense 114,622 148,585 118,324
NET INCOME 231,123 268,564 228,643
Preferred Stock Dividend Requirements 732 732 732
EARNINGS APPLICABLE TO COMMON STOCK 230,321 § 267,832 227,911

The conumon siock of OPCo is whaily-awned by AEF.

See Notes to Financial Statements of Registrant Subsidiaries beginning on page H-1.
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OO POWER COMPANY CONSOQOLIDATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN COMMON SHAREHOLDER?’S

EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

(in thousands)

Accumulated
Other
Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive
Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total
DECEMBER 31, 2008 $ 321201 3 466637 § 879,354  § 755 % 1,767,947
Capital Contribution from Parent 70,000 70,000
Preferred Stock Dividends (732) (73
Gain on Reacquired Preferred Stock 2 2
TOTATL 1,837,217
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Faxes:
Cash Flow Hedges, Net of Tax of $3,504 6,507 6,507
Minimum Pension Liability, Net of Tax of $110 (204) (204)
NET INCOMTI 228,643 228,643
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 234,946
Minimum Pension Liabilily Elimination, Net of
Tax of $110 204 204
SFAS 1358 Adoption, Net of Tax of $34,475 (64.025) (64,025)
DECEMBER 31, 2006 321,201 536,639 1,207,265 (56,763) 2,008,342
TIN 48 Adeplion, Net of Tax (5,380} (5,380
Preferred Stock Dividends (732) (132)
Gain on Reacquired Preferred Stock i 1
TOTAL 2,002,231
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Otlier Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Taxes:
Cash I'low Hedges, Net of Tax of $3,287 6,105) {6,105)
Pension and OPEB Funded Status, Net of Tax
of $14,176 26,327 26,327
NET INCOME 268,564 268,564
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ! 288,786
DECEMBER 31, 2007 321,201 536,640 1,469,717 (36,541) 2,281,017
EITF 06-10 Adoption, Net of Tax of $1,004 (1,864) - {1,864)
SFAS 157 Adoption, Net of Tax of $152 (282) (282)
Preferred Stock Dividends (732) (732)
TOTAL 2,288,139
COMPREHENSIVE INCOMTI
Other Comprehensive Ineeme (Loss), Net of Taxes:
Cash Flow Hedges, Net of Tax of $1,343 2,493 2,493
Amartization of Pension and OPEB Deferred Costs,
Net of Tax of $1,515 2,813 2,813
Pension and OPEB Funded Status, Net of Tax of
355,259 (102,623) (102,623)
NET INCOME 231,123 231,123
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 133,805
DECEMBIER 31, 2008 5 321,201 § 536,640 $§ 1657952 § (133,858) 3 2,421,945

See Notes 1o Financial Statements of Registrant Subsidiaries beginning on page H-1,
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OHIO POWER COMPANY CONSOLIDATED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
ASSETS
December 31, 2008 and 2007
{(in thonsands)

, 2008 2007
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 12,679 § 6,666
Accounts Receivable:
Customers 91,235 104,783
Affiliated Companies 118,721 119,560
Accrued Unbilled Revenues 18,239 26,819
Miscelianeous 23,393 1,578
Allowanee for Uncollectible Aecounts {3,586) (3,396)
‘Total Accounts Receivable 243,002 249,344
Fuel 186,904 92,874
Materials and Supplies 107,419 108,447
Rigk Management Assets 33,292 44,236
Prepayments and Other 56,567 18,300
TOTAL 664,863 519,867
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Rlectric:
Production 6,025,277 5,641,537
Transmission _ 1,111,637 1,068,337
Distribution 1,472,906 1,394,988
Other 391,862 318,805
Consfruction Work in Progress 787,180 716,640
Total 9,788,862 9,140,357
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization 3,122,989 2,067,285
TOTAL - NET ' 6,665,873 6,173,072
OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS
Regulatory Assets : 449,210 323,105
Long-term Risk Managetnent Assets 39,097 49,586
Deferred Charges and Other 184,777 272,799
TOTAL 673,090 645,490
TOTAL ASSETS 3 8,003,826 §$ 7,338,429

See Notes to Financial Statenteits of Registrant Subsidiaries beginning on page H-1,
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OHIO POWER COMPANY CONSOLIDATED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

December 31, 2008 and 2007

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advances from Affiliates
Accounts Payable;

General

Affiliated Companies
Short-term Debt - Nonaffiliated
Long-term Debt Due Within One Year — Nonaffiliated
Risk Management Liabilities
Customer Deposits
Accrued Taxes
Accrued Interest
Other
TOTAL

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term Debt — Nonafliliated

Long-term Debt — Affiliated

Long-term Risk Management Liabilities

Deferred Income Taxes

Regulatory Liabilities and Deferred Investment Tax Credits
Employee Benefits and Pension Obligations

Deferred Credits and Other

TOTAL

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Minority Interest

Cumnulative Preferred Stock Mot Subject to Mandatory Redemption

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 6)

COMMON SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

Common Stock — No Par Value:
Authorized — 40,000,000 Shares
Qutstanding — 27,952,473 Shares
Paid-in Capital
Retained Earnings
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

TOTAL

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ BQUITY

See Notes to Financial Statements of Registrant Subsidiaries beginning on page H-1.

2008 2007
(in thousands)

5 133,887 % 101,548
193,675 141,196
206,984 137,389

- 701
77,500 55,188
29,218 40,548
24,333 30,613
187,256 135011
44,245 41,880
163,702 149,658
1,060,860 883,732
2,761,876 2,594,410
200,000 200,000
23,817 32,194
927,072 914,170
127,788 160,721
288,106 81,913
158,996 147,722
4,487,655 4,131,130
5,548,455 5,014,862
16,799 15,523
16,627 16,627
321,201 321,201
536,540 536,640
1,697,962 1,469,717
{133,858) (36,541)
2,421,945 2,201,017
$ 8,003,826 $ 7,333,429



OHIO POWER COMPANY CONSOLIDATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

(in thonsands)

2008 2007 2006
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income . 23,123 % 268,564 228,643
Adjustments 1o Reconcile Neot Income to Net Cash Flows from
Operating Activities:
Depreeiation and Amortization 273,720 339,817 321,954
Deferred Income Taxes 42,717 16,238 (43,997
Carrying Costs Income (16,30%) (14,472) (13,841)
Allowance for Equity Funds Used During Construction {3,073) .311) (2,550)
Mark-to-Market of Risk Management Contracts (13,839) {7,006} (8,770}
Change in Other Noncurrent Assets (54,160) {39,513) 1,821
Change in Other Nongurrent Liabilities (9,569) 783 10,126
Changes in Certain Components of Worlking Capital:
Accounts Receivable, Net 5,104 (54,7300 116,496
IFuel, Malerials and Supplics (89,058) 17,845 (21,914}
Accounts Payable 126,716 (19,536) {14,114)
Customer Deposits (6,280) 8,970 1,543,
Accrued Taxes, Net (11,210) 41,623 23,620
Other Current Asscts (10,730) (948) 18,890
Other Current Liabilities 20,269 17,671 8,345
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 435,421 572,995 626,246
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Constriction Expenditures (706,315) {933,162) {909,603)
Acquisition of Assets (2,033) ' - -
Proceeds Trom Sales of Assets . 8,293 9,023 15,443
Other (L.734) 158 (1,935)
Net Cash Flows Used for Investing Activities (701,789) {923,981) (986,095)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Contribution from Parent - - 70,000
Issuance of Long-term Debt — Nonaffiliated 491,204 461,912 408,710
Change in Short-tern Debt, Net — MNonaffiliated {701) (502) (9,163)
Change in Advances from Affiliates, Net 32,339 (79,733) 111,210
Retirement of Long-term Debt — NonafTiliated {305,188) (17,854) (12,354)
Retirement of Long-term Debt — Affiliated - - 200,000)
Retirement of Curnulative Preferred Stock - (2) {7
Principal Payments for Capital Lease Obligations (5,736) (7.062) (7.430)
Dividends Paid on Comulative Preferred Stock (732) (732) (732}
Other 11,195 - -
Net Cash Flows from Finaneing Activities 222,381 356,027 360,234
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,013 5,041 385
Cash and Cash Equivalcnts at Beginning of Period 6,000 1,625 1,240
Cash and Cash Equivalcnts at End of Period 12,679 § 6,666 1,625
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Cash Paid for Intercst, Net of Capitalized Amounts 144,790 & 122,591 94,051
Net Cash Paid for Income Taxes 100,430 110,197 142,895
Noncash Acquisitions Under Capital Leases 3,910 2,058 3,288
Noncash Acquisition of Coal Land Rights 41,600 - -
Construction Expenditures Included in Accounts Payable at December 31, 33,177 39,678 125,962
Revenue Refund Incloded in Accounts Payable at December 31, 62,045 - -

See Notes fo Financial Statenienis of Registrant Subsidiaries beginning on page H-1.
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November 16, 2005 |

Company Order and Officers’ Certificate
5.30% Senior Notes, Series J, due 2010

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas

60 Wall Street
New York, NY 10005

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Article Two of the Indenture, dated as of September 1, 1997 (as it may be
amended or supplemented, the “Indenture™), from Ohio Power Company (the “Company™) fo
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee (the “Irustee”), and the Board Resolutions
dated June 23, 2005, a copy of which certified by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the
Company is being delivered herewith under Section 2.01 of the Indenture, and unless otherwise

provided in a subsequent Company Order pursuant to Section 2.04 of the Indenture,

1. The Compauy’s 5.30% Senior Notes, Series J, due 2010 (the “Notes™) are
hereby established. The Notes shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

2. The terms and characteristics of the Notes shall be as follows (the numbered
clauses set forth below corresponding to the numbered subsections of Section 2.01 of the
Indenture, with terms nsed and not defined herein having the meanings specified in the

Indenture):

@) the aggrepate principal amount of Noles which may be authenticated and
delivered under the Indenture shall be limited to $200,000,000, except as
contermplated in Section 2.01 of the Indenture;

(i)  the date on which the principal of the Notes shall be payable shall be
November 1, 2010;

(iii)  interest shall accrue from the date of authentication of the Notes; the
Interest Payment Dates on. which such interest will be payable shall be May 1 and
November 1, and the Regular Record Date for the determination of helders to
whom interest is payable on any such Interest Payment Date shall be April 15 and
October 15, respectively; provided that the first Inferest Payment Date shall be
May 1, 2006 and interest payable on the Stated Maturity Date or any Redemption
Date shall be paid to the Person to whom principal shall be paid;

(iv)  the interest rate at which the Notfes shall bear interest shall be 5.30% per
annur;
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(v)  the Notes shall be redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole at any
time or in part from time to time, upon not less than thirty but not more than sixty
days’ previous notice given by mail to the registered owners of the Notes at 2
redemption price equal to the greater of (i) 100% of the principal amount of the
Notes being redeemed and (ii) the sum of the present values of the remaining
scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Notes being redeemed
{(excluding the portion of any such interest accrued to the date of redemption)
discounted (for purposes of determining present value) to the redemption date on a
semi-annual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at
the Treasury Rate (as defined below) plus 15 basis points, plus, in each case, accrued
inferest thereon to the date of redemption.

“Treasury Rate” means, with respect to any redemption date, the rate per
annum equal to the semi-annua! equivalent yield to maturity of the
Comparable Treasury Issue, assuming a price for the Comparable
Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal
to the Comparable Treasury Price for such redemption date.

“Comparable Treasury Issue” means the United States Treasury security
selected by an Independent Investment Banker as having a maturity
comparable to the remaining term of the Notes that would be utilized, at
the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial
practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of comparable

matuority to the remaining term of the Notes,

“Comparable Treasury Price” means, with respect to any redemption
date, (i) the average of the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotation for
such redemption date, after excluding the highest and lowest such
Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, or (i) if the Company obtains
fewer than four such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average

of all such quotations.

“Independent Investment Banker” means one of the Reference Treasury
Dealers appointed by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the

Trustee,

“Reference Treasury Dealer” means a primary U.S. government
secorities dealer in New York City selected by the Company and

reasonably acceptable to the Trustee.
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“Reference Treasury Dealer Quotation” means, with respect to the
Reference Treasury Dealer and any redemption dafe, the average, as
determined by the Trustee, of the bid and asked prices for ihe
Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its
principal amount) quoted in writing to the Trustee by such Reference
Treasury Dealer at or before 3:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third
Business Day preceding such redemption date.

(vi) (a) the Notes shall be issued in: the form of a Global Note; (b) the Depositary for
such Global Note shall be The Depository Trust Company; and (c) the procedures
with respect to transfer and exchange of Global Notes shall be as set forth in the

form of Note attached hereto;

(vii)  the title of the Notes shall be “5.30% Senior Notes, Series I, due 20107;
(viii) the form of the Notes shall be as set forth in Paragréph 1, above;
(ix)  not applicable;

(x) the Notes may be subject to a Periodic Offering;

(xi)  not applicable;

(xii)  notapplicable;

(xii1) not applicable;

(xiv) ~the Notes shall be issuable in denominations of $1,000 and any integral
multiple thereof; '

{xv) notapplicable;
{xvi) the Notes shall not be issued as Discount Securities;
{xvii) not applicable;

(xvii1) not applicable; and

(xix) Limitations on Liens:
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So long as any of the Notes are outstanding, the Company will not create or suffer to be
created or to exist any additional mortgage, pledge, security interest, or other lien (collectively
“Liens™) on any of the Company’s utility properties or tangible assets now owned or hereafter
acquired to secure any indebtedness for borrowed money (“Secured Debt™), without providing
that such Notes will be similarly secured. This restriction does not apply to the Company’s
subsidiaries, nor will it prevent any of them from creating or permitting to exist Liens on their
property or assets to secure any Secured Debt. In addition, this restriction does not prevent the

creation or existence of:

» Liens on property existing at the time of acquisition or construction of such
property (or created within one year after completion of such acquisition or
construction), whether by purchase, merger, construction or otherwise, or to
secure the payment of all or any part of the purchase price or construction cost
thereof, including the extension of any Liens fo repairs, renewals, replacements
substitutions, betterments, additions, extensions and improvements then or

thereafter made on the property subject thereto;
» Financing of the Company’s accounts receivable for electric service;

Any extensions, renewals or replacements (or successive extensions, renewals or
replacements), in whole or in part, of liens permitted by the foregoing clauses;

and

The pledge of any bonds or other securities at any time issued under any of the
Secured Debt permitted by the above clauses. '

In addition to the pennitted issuances above, Secured Debt not otherwise so permitted
may be issued in an amount that does not exceed 15% of Net Tangible Assets as defined below.

“Net Tangible Assets” means the total of all assets (including revaluations thereof as a
result of commercial appraisals, price level restatement or otherwise) appearing on the
Company’s balance sheet, net of applicable reserves and deductions, but excluding goodwill,
trade names, trademarks, patents, unamortized debt discount and all other like intangible assets
(which term shall not be construed to include such revaluations), less the aggregate of the
Company’s current liabilities appearing on such balance sheet. For purposes of this definition,
the Company's balance sheet does not include assets and liabilities of its subsidiaries.

This restriction also will not apply to or prevent the creation or existence of leases made,
or existing on property acquired, in the ordinary course of business.
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3. You are hereby requested to authenticate $200,000,000 aggregate principal
amount of 5.30% Senior Notes, Series J, due 2010, executed by the Company and delivered
to you concurrently with this Company Order and Officers’ Certificate, in the manner

provided by the Indenture.

-4, You are hereby requested to hold the Notes as custodian for DTC in
accordance with the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations dated July 9, 2003, from the

Company to DTC.

5. Concurrently with this Cornpany Order and Officers’ Certificafe, an Opinion
of Counsel under Sections 2.04 and 13.06 of the Indenture is being deliverad to you.

6. The undersigned Stephan T. Haynes and Thomas G. Berkemever, the
Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Secretary, respectively, of the Company do hereby certify

that:

® we have read the relevant porfions of the Indenture, including without
limitation the conditions precedent provided for therein relating to the action
proposed to be taken by the Trustee as requested in this Company Order and
Officers® Certificate, and the definitions in the Indenfure relating thereto;

(i)  we have read the Board Resolutions of the Company and the Opinion of
Counsel referred to above;

(i)  we have conferred with other officers of the Company, have examined such
records of the Company and have made such other investigation as we deemed

relevant for purposes of this certificate;

(iv)  in our opinion, we have made such examination or investigation as is
necessary to enable ns to express an informed opinion as to whether or not such
conditions have been complied with; and

(v}  on the basis of the foregoing, we are of the opinion that all conditions
precedent provided for in the Indenture relating to the action proposed to be taken by
the Trustee as requested herein have been complied with.

Dog #324538.v2 Dale: 11/14/2005 11:01 AM



Kindly acknowledge receipt of this Company Order and Officers® Certificate, including the
documents listed herein, and confirm the arrangements set forth herein by signing and refurning the

copy of this document attached hereto.
Very truly yours,

OHIO POWER COMPANY

By:

Aszistant Treasurer

And:

Assistant Secretary

Acknowledped by Trustee:

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS

By:

Authorized Signatory
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Exhibit 1

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust
Company (55 Water Street, New York, New York) to the issuer or its agent for registration of
transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate to be issued is registered in the name of Cede &
Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust
Company and any payment 1s made to Cede & Co.,, ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER
USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL
inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein. Except as otherwise
provided in Section 2.11 of the Indenture, this Securify may be transferred, in whole but not in part,
only to another nominee of the Depository or to a successor Depository or to a nominee of such

successor Depository.
No. Rl

OHIO POWER COMPANY
5.30% Senior Notes, Series J, due 2010

CUSIP: 677415 CK 5 Original Issue Date: November 16, 2005

Stated Maturity: November I, 2010 Interest Rate: 5.30%

Principal Amount: $200,000,000

Redeemable: Yes X No
n Whole: Yes X No
In Part: Yes X No

OHIO POWER COMPANY, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of
the State of Ohio (herein referred to as the "Company", which term includes any successor
corporation under the Indenture hereinafter referred to), for value received, hereby promises to pay
to CEDE & CO. or registered assigns, the Principal Amount specified above on the Stated Maturity
‘'specified above, and to pay interest on said Principal Amount from the Original Issue Date specified -
above or from the most recent inferest payment date (each such date, an "Interest Payment Date") to
which interest has been paid or duly provided for, semi-annually in arrears on May 1 and November
1 in each vear, commencing on May 1, 2006, at the Interest Rate per annum specified above, until
the Principal Amount shall have been paid or duly provided for. Inferest shail be computed on the

basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

The interest so payable, and punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment
Date, as provided in the Indenture, as hereinafter defined, shall be paid to the Person in whose name
this Note (or one or more Predecessor Securities) shall have been registered at the close of business
on the Regnlar Record Date with respect to such Interest Payment Date, which shall be the April 15
or October 13 (whether or not a Business Day), as the case may be, immediately preceding such
Interest Payment Date, provided that inferest payable on the Stated Maturity or any redemption date
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shall be paid fo the Person to whom principal is paid. Any such interest not so punctually paid or
duly provided for shall forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date

and shall be paid as provided in said Indenture.

If any Interest Payment Date, any redemption date or Stated Matunity is not 2 Business Day,
then payment of the amounts due on this Note on such date will be made on the next succeeding
Business Day, and no inferest shall accrue on such amounts for the period from and after such
Interest Payment Date, redemption date or Stated Maturity, as the case may be, with the same force
and effect as if made on such date. The principal of (and premium, if any) and the interest on this
Note shall be payable at the office or agency of the Company maintained for that purpose in the
Borough of Manhattan, the City of New York, New York, in any coin or currency of the United
States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for payment of public and private
debts; provided, however, that payment of interest (other than interest payable on the Stated
Maturity or any redemption date} may be made at the option of the Company by check mailed to the
registered holder at such address as shall appear in the Security Register.

This Note is one of a duly authorized series of Notes of the Company (herein sometimes
referred to as the "Notes"), specified in the Indenture, ali issued or to be issued in one or more series
under and pursnant to an Indenture dated as of September 1, 1997 duly executed and delivered
between the Company and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (formerly Bankers Trust
Company), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, as
Trustee (herein referred to as the *Trusiee™) (such Indenture, as originally executed and delivered
and as thereafter supplemented and amended being hereinafter referred to as the "Indenture™), to
which Indenture and all indentures supplemental thereto or Company Orders reference is hereby
made for a description of the rights, limitations of rights, obligations, duties and immunities
thereunder of the Trustee, the Company and the holders of the Notes. By the terms of the Indenture,
the Notes are issuable in series which may vary as to amount, date of maturity, rate of interest and in
other respects as in the Indenture provided. This Note is one of the series of Notes designated on

the face hereof.

This Note may be redeemed by the Company at its 'option, in whole at any time or in part
from time to time, upon not less than thirty but not more than sixty days' prior notice given by mail
to the registered owners of the Notes at a redemption price equal to the greater of (i) 100% of the
principal amount of the Notes being redeemed and (i1) the sum of the present values of the
remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Note being redeemed (excluding the
portion of any such interest accrued to the date of redemption) discounted (for purposes of
determining present value) to the redemption date on a semi-annual basis (assuming a 360-day year
consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the Treasury Rate (as defined below) plus 15 basis points,
plus, in each case, accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption.

"Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any redemption date, the rate per
annum  equal to the semi-annval equivalent yield to matunity of the
Comparable Treasury Issue, assuming a price for the Comparable Treasury
Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the
Comparable Treasury Price for such redemption date.
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"Comparable Treasury Issue" means the United States Treasury securify
selected by an Independent Investment Banker as having a maturity
comparable to the remaining term of the Notes that would be utilized, at the
time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in
pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturify to the

remaining term of the Notes.

"Comparable Treasury Price" means, with respect to any redemption date, (1)
the average of the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for such redemption
date, after excluding the highest and lowest such Reference Treasury Dealer
Quotations, or (2) if we obtain fewer than four such Reference Treasury

Dealer Quotations, the average of all such quotations.

"Independent Investment Banker" means one of the Reference Treasury
Dealers appointed by the Company and reasonably acceptable fo the Trustee.

"Reference Treasury Dealer” means a primary U. S. government securities
dealer in New York City selecied by the Company and reasonably acceptable

to the Trustee.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotation” means, with respect to the Reference
- Treasury Dealer and any redemption date, the average, as determined by the
Trustee, of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue
(expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) quoted in
writing to the Trustee by such Reference Treasury Dealer at or before 5:00
pan., New York City time, on the third Business Day preceding such

redemption date.

The Company shall not be required to (i) issue, exchange or register the transfer of any
Notes during a period beginning at the opening of business 15 days before the day of the mailing of
a notice of redemption of less than ali the outstanding Notes of the same series and ending at the
close of business on the day of such mailing, nor (ii) register the transfer of or exchange of any
Notes of any series or portions thereof called for redemption. This Global Note is exchangeable for
Notes in definitive registered form only under certain limited circumstances set forth in the

Indenture.

In the event of redemption of this Note in part only, a2 new Note or Notes of this series, of
like tenor, for the unredeemed portion hereof will be issued in the name of the Holder hereof upon
the surrender of this Note.

In case an Event of Default, as defined in the Indenture, shall have occuwired and be

continuing, the principal of all of the Notes may be declared, and upon such declaration shall
become, due and payable, in the manner, with the effect and subject to the conditions provided in

the Indentine.
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The Indenture contains provisions for defeasance at any time of the entire indebtedness of
this Note upon compliance by the Company with certain conditions set forth therein.

As described in the Company Order and Officers’ Certificate, so long as this Note is
outstanding, the Company is subject to a limitation on Liens as described therein.

The Indenture contains provisions permitting the Company and the Trustee, with the
consent of the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes of each
series affected at the time outstanding, as defined in the Indenfure, to execute supplemental
indentures for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing in any manner or eliminating any
of the provisions of the Indenture or of any supplemental indenture or of modifying in any manner
the rights of the Holders of the Notes; nrovided, however, that no such supplemental indenfure shall
(i) extend the fixed matuiity of any Notes of any series, or reduce the principal amount thereof, or
reduce the rafe or extend the time of payment of interest thereon, or reduce any premium payable
upon the redemption thereof, or reduce the amount of the principal of a Discount Security that
would be due and payable upon a declaration of acceleration of the maturity thereof pursuant to the
Indenture, without the congent of the holder of each Note then outstanding and affected; (ii) reduce
the aforesaid percentage of Notes, the holders of which are required fo consent to any such
supplemental indenture, or reduce the percentage of Notes, the holders of which are required to
waive any default and ifs conseguences, without the consent of the holder of each Note then
outstanding and affected thereby; or (iii) modify any provision of Section 6.01(c} of the Indenture
(except to increase the percentage of principal amount of securities required to rescind and annul
any declaration of amounts due and payable under the Notes), without the consent of the holder of
each Note then outstanding and affected thereby. The Indenture also contains provisions permitting
the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes of all series at the time
outstanding affected thereby, on behalf of the Holders of the Notes of such series, fo waive any past
default in the performance of any of the covenants contained in the Indenture, or established
pursuant to the Indenture with respect to such series, and iis consequences, except a default in the
payment of the principal of or premium, if any, or interest on any of the Notes of such series. Any
such consent or waiver by the registered Holder of this Note (unless revoked as provided in the
Indenture) shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holder and upon all future Holders and
owners of this Note and of any Note issued in exchange herefor or in place hereof (whether by
registration of transfer or otherwise), irrespective of whether or not any notation of such consent or

waiver is made upon this Note.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall
alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on this Note at the time and place and at the rate and

in the money herein prescribed.

As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this Note is
transferable by the registered holder hereof on the Security Register of the Company, upon
surrender of this Note for registration of transfer at the office or agency of the Company as may be
designated by the Company accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer in form
safisfactory to the Company or the Trustee duly executed by the registered Holder hereof or hic or
her attorney duly authorized in writing, and thereupon one or more new Notes of authorized
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denominations and for the same aggregate principal amount and series will be issued to the
designated transferee or transferees. No service charge will be made for any such transfer, but the
Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge

payable in relation thereto.

Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer of this Note, the Company, the Trustee,
any paying apent and any Security Registrar may deem and freat the registered Holder hereof as the
absolute owner hereof (whether or not this Note shall be overdue and notwithstanding any notice of
ownership or writing hereon made by anyone other than the Security Registrar) for the purpose of
receiving payment of or on account of the principal hereof and premium, if any, and interest due
hereon and for all other purposes, and neither the Company nor the Trustee nor any paying agent
nor any Security Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the confrary.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or the interest on this Note, or
for any claim based hereon, or otherwise in respect hereof, or based on or in respect of the
Indenture, against any incorporator, stockholder, officer or director, past, present or future, as such,
of the Company or of any predecessor or successor corporation, whether by virtue of any
constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penaliy or otherwise,
all such liability being, by the acceptance hereof and as part of the consideration for the issuance

hereof, expressly waived and released.

The Notes of this series are issuable only in registered form without coupons in
denominations of $1,000 and any integral multiple thereof. As provided in the Indenture and
subject to certain limitations, Notes of this series are exchangeable for a like aggregate principal
amount of Notes of this series of a different authorized denomination, as requested by the Holder

surrendering the same.

All terms used in this Note which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings
assigned to them in the Indenture. :

This Note shall not be entitled to any bencfit under the Indenture hereinafter referred to, be
valid or become obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of Authentication hereon shall have

been signed by or on behalf of the Trustee.

{ The remainder of this page infentionally left blank.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Instrument fo be executed.

OHIO POWER COMPANY
By:
: Agssistant Treasurer
Attest:
By:
Agsistant Secretary
6
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This 1s one of the Notes of the series of Notes designated in accordance with, and referred to
in, the within-mentioned Indenture.

Dated: November 16, 2005
DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS

By:
Authorized Signatory
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FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sell(s), assign(s) and transfer(s) unto

(PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER
IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE)

(PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE NAME AND ADDRESS, INCLUDING ZIP CODE, OF

ASSIGNEE) the within Note and all rights thereunder, hereby

irrevocably constituiing and appointing such person attorney to

transfer such Nofe on the books of the Issuer, with full

power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as written upon the
face of the within Note in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change
whatever and NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by a financial institution that is a member
of the Securities Transfer Agents Medallion Program ("STAMP"), the Stock Exchange Medallion
Program ("SEMP") or the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. Medallion Signature Program ("MSP™).
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Bxhibit C

OHTO POWER COMPANY
AND

THE FIRST NATIONAL BANEKE OF CHICAGO,
as Trustee

SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE

Dated as of March 1, 1597
TO
INDENTURE

Dated as of Octoker 1,.1585.

7.92% Junior Subordinated
Deferrable Interest Debentures,
Series B, Due 2027



SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, dated as of the 1st day of
March, 1987 (the "Second Supplemental Indenturs"}, between OHIO
POWER COMPANY, a corporation duly organized and existing under the
laws of the State of Ohio {(hereinafter gometimes referred to as the
"Company"), and THE FIRST MNATIONAL BANK OF CHICAGO, a national
banking associlation crganized and existing under the laws of the
United Stateg, as trugtee (hereinafter scometimes referred to ag the
"Truatee®) under the Indenture dated as of October 1, 1995 between
the Company and the Trustee, as supplemented by a First
Supplemental Indenture dated October 1, 1995 (the "Indenture"); all
termg used and not defined herein are used a3 defined in cthe

Indenture;

WHEREAS, the Company executed and delivered the Indenture to
the Trustee to provide for the future issuance of its Jjunior
cgubordinated debentures (the "Debentures"), said Debentures to be
igssuned from time to time in series as might be determined by the
Company under the Indenture, in an unlimited aggregate principal
amount:. which may be authenticated and delivered thereunder as in

the Indenture provided; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, the Company
desires to provide for the establishment of a new zeries of its
Debentures to be known asg its 7.92% Junior Subordinated Deferrable
Interest Debentures, Seriess B, Due 2027 (said series being
hereinafter referred to as the "Serieg B Debentures"), the form and
gubstance of such Series B Debentures and the terms=, provisions and
conditions thereof to be get forth as provided in the Indenture and
this Second Supplemental Indenture; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires and has requested the Trustee to
join with it in the execution and delivery of this Second
Supplemental Indenture, and all regquirements necessary to make this
Second Supplemental Indenture a valid. instrument, in accordance
with its terms, and to make the Series B Debentures, when executed
by the Company and authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, the
valid c¢hligations of the Company, have been performed and
fulfilled, and the execution and delivery hereof have been in all

respects duly authorized;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the purchase and acceptance
of the Series B Debentures by the holders thereof, and for the
purpose of setting forth, as provided in the Indenture, the form
and substance of the Series B Debentures and the terms, provisions
and conditions thereof, the Company covenants and agrees with. the

Trustee as follows:



ARTICLE ONE

General Terms and Conditions of
the Series B Debentures

SECTION 1.01. There shall be zand -is hereby authorized a
geries of Debentures designated the "7.92% Junior Subordinated
Deferrable Interest Debentures, Series B, Due 20z27%, limited in
aggregate principal amount to $50,000,000, which amount shall be as
set forth 1in any writter order of the Company for the
-authentication and delivery of Series B Debentures pursuant to
Section 2.01 of the Indenture, The Series B Debentureg shall
mature and the principal shall be due and payable together with all
accrued and unpaid interest thereon on March 31, 2027, and shall be
igsued in the form of registered Serxies B Debentures without

coupons.

SECTION 1.02. Except asg provided in Section 2.11(c) of the
Indenture, the Series B Debentures shall be issued initially in the
form of a Global Debenture in an aggregate principal amount equal
to all outstanding Series B Debentures, to be regigtered in the
name of the Depository, or its nominee, and delivered by the
Trustee to the Depository for crediting to the accounts of its
participants pursuant to the instructions of the Company. The
Company shall execute a Global Debenture 1in such aggregate
principal amount and deliver the same to the Trustee for
authentication and delivery as hereinabove and in the Indenture
provided. Payments on the Series B Debentures issued as a Global
Dehenture will be made to the Depository. The Depository for the
Series B Debentures shall be The Depositcry Trust Company, New

York, New York.

. SECTION 1.03. If, pursuant to the provigions of Bection
2.11{c} of the Indenture, the Series B Debhentures are issued in
certificated form, principal, premium, if any, and interest on the
Series B Debentures will be payable, the transfer of such Series B
Debentures will be registrable and-such Series B Debentures will be
exchangeable for Series B Debentures bearing identical terms and
provigions at the office or agency of the Company only upon
surrender of such certificated Series B Debenture and such other
documents ag required by the Indenture; provided, however, that
payment of interest may be made at the option of the Company by
check mailed to the registered holder at such address as shall

appear in the Debenture Register.

SECTION 1.04. ©Each Series B Debenture shall bear intersst at
the rate of 7.92% per annum from the original date of issuance
until the principal thereof becomes due and payable, and on any
overdue principal and (to the extent that payment of such interest
is enforceable under applicable law) on any overdue installment of
interest at the game rate per annum, payable (subject to the
provisgsions of Article Three hereof) quarterly in arrears on each

2



March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 (each, an "Interest
Payment Date'), commencing on March 31, 1997. Interest (other than
interest payable on redemption or maturity) shall be payable to the
person in whose name such Series B Debenture or any predecessor
Series B Debenture is registered at the close of business on the
regular record date f£or sguch interest installment. The regular
record date for such interest installment shall be the close of
business on the business day next preceding that Interest Payment
Date; except that if, pursuant £o the provisions of Section 2.11(c)
of the Indenture, the Saries B Debeéntures are no longer represgsented
by a Global Debenture, the regular record date for such interest
ingtallment shall be the close of business on the March 15, June
15, September 15 or December 15 (whether or not a businegzs day)
next preceding the Interest Payment Date. Interegst payable on

- redemption or maturity shall be payable to the person to whom the
principal is paid. 2&ny such interest installment not punctually
paid or duly provided for shall forthwith cease to be payable to
the registered holders on such regular record date, and may be paid
to the person in whose name the Series B Debenture (or one or more
Predecessor Debentures) 1is registered at the close of business on
a specilal record date to be fixed by the Trustee for the payment of
such defiulted interest, notice whereof shall be given to the
registered holders of the Series B Debentures not less than 10 days
prior to such special record date, or may be paild at any time in
any cther lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of
any securities exchange on which the Series B Debentures may be
listed, and upon such notice as may be required by such exchange,
all as more fully provided in the Indenture.

The amcunt of interest payable for any period will be computed
on the bagis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. In the
event that any date on which interest is payable on the Series B
Debentures is not a business day, then payment of interest payable
on such date will be made on the next succeeding day which i3 a
business day (and without any interest or other payment in respect
of any such delay), except that, if such business day is in the
next succeeding calendar year, such payment shall be made on the
immediately preceding business day, in each case with the same
force and effect as if made on such date.

ARTICLE TWO

Redemption of the Series B Debentureg

SECTION 2.0l1. Subject to the terms of Article Three of the
Indenture, the Company shall have the right to redeem the Series B
Debentures, in whole or in part, from time to time, at the time and
redemption price set forth in the form of Debenture contained in
Exhibit A hereto. Any redemption pursuant to this Section will be
made upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice. If the
Series B Debentures are only partially redeemed pursuant to this
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Section, the Debentures will be redeemed pro rata or by lot or by
any other method utilized by the Trustee; provided, that if at the
time of redemption, the Serieg B Debentures are registered as a
Global Debenture, the Depository shall determine by lot the
principal amount of such Series B Debentures held by each Series B

Debentureholder to be redeemed.

ARTICLE THREE

Extension cf Interest Payment Period

SECTION 3.01. The Company shall have the right, at any time
during the term of the Series B Debentures, from time to time to
extend the interest payment period of such Serieg B Debentureg for
up to 20 consecutive guarters (the "Extended Interest Payment
Period"), at the end of which period the Company shall pay all
interest accrued and unpaid thereon (together with interest thereon
compounded guarterly at the rate specified for the Series B
Debentures to the extent permitted by applicable law); provided
that, during such Extended Interest Payment Period, the Company
shall not declare or pay any dividend on, or purchase, acguire or
make a liguidation payment with respect to, any of its capital

stock or make any guarantee payments with respect to the foregoing. '

Pricr to the termination of any such Extended Interest FPayment
Period, the Company may further extend such period, provided that
such period together with all such previous and further extensions
thereof shall not exceed 20 consecutive quarters or extend beyond
the maturity of the Series B Debentures. Upon the termination of
any Extended Interest Payment Period and upon the payment of all
accrued and unpald interest then due, the Company may select a new
Extended Interest Payment Period, subject to the foregoing
reguirements. No interest shall be due and payable during an
Extended Interest Payment Period, except at the end thereof.

SECTION 3.02. (&) - The Company shall give the holders of the
Series B Debentures and the Trustee written notice of its selection
of such Extended Interest Payment Period at least 10 business days
prior to the earlier of (i) the next succeeding Interest Payment
Date or (ii) the date the Company is required to give notice to
holders of the Series B Debentures (or, if applicable, to the New
York  Stock  Exchange or other applicable self-regulatory
organization}, of the record or payment date of such interest
‘payment, but in any event not less than two business days prior to

such record date.

(b} The guarter in which any notice is given pursuant to

paragraph (a) of this Section shall constitute one of the 20
gquarters which comprise the maximum Extended Interest Payment
Period.



ARTICLE FOUR

Form of Series B Debenture

SECTION 4.01. The Series B -Debentures and the Trustee’s
Certificate of Authentication to be endorsed thereon are to be
substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto.

ARTICLE FIVE

Original Issue of Series B Debentures

SECTION 5.01. Series B Debentures in the aggregate principal
amount of $50,000,000 may, upon execution of this Second
Supplemental Indenture, or from time to time thereafter, be
executed by the Company and delivered to the Trustee for
authentication, and the Trustee sghall thereupon authenticate and
deliver said Debentures to or upon the written order of the
Company, signed by its Chairman of the Board, its President, or any
Vice President and its Treasurar or an Assistant Treasurer, without

any further action by the Company.

ARTICLE 51X

Covenant of the Company

SECTION 6.01. The Company will not declare or pay any
dividend on, or purchase, acquire or make a distribution or
liguidation payment with respect to, any of its capital stock, or
make any guarantee payments with respect thereto, if at such time
(i} there shall have occurred and be continuing any Event of

Default under the Indenture or (ii}) the Company shall have given

notice of its selection of an Extended Interest Payment Period and

such period, or any extension thereof, shall be continuing.

ARTICLE SEVEN

Migcellaneous Provisions

SECTION 7.01. Except as otherwise expregsly provided in this

Second Supplemental Indenture or in the form of Series B Debenture

or otherwise clearly required by the context hereof or thereof, all
termg used herein or in said form of Series B Debenture that are
defined in the Indenture ghall have the several meanings

respectively assigned to them thexreby.



SECTICN 7.C2. The Indenture, as supplemented by this Second
Supplemental Indenture, is in all respects ratified and confirmed,
and this Second Supplemental Indenture shall be deemed part of the
Indenture in the manner and to the extent herein and therein

provided.

The recitals herein contained are made by the

Company and not by the Trustee, and the Trustee assumes no
responsibility for the correctness therecf. The Trustee makes no
repregentation ags to the validity or sufficiency. of this Second

Supplemental, Indenture

SECTION 7.03.

SECTION 7.04. This Second Supplemental Indenture may be
executed in any number of counterparts each of which shall be an
original; but such counterpartse shall together constitute but one

and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Second

Supplemental Indenture to be duly executed, and their respective
corporate seals to be hereunto affixed and attested, on the date or
dates indicated in the acknowledgments and as of the day and year

firat apove written.
OHIQ POWER COMPANY

S
f Treasurer

/

By

Attest:

THE FIRST NATiONAL BANK OF CHICAGO
JTrustee

o (JMalZ

Vice President

Attegt:

/?y{horized OfFficer




State of Ohio }

County of Franklin, ' s8:

On this 1l4th day of March, 1987, perscnally appeared before
me, a Notary Public within and for sdid County in the State
aforesaid, A. A. Pena and John M. Adams, Jr., to me known and known
to me to be respectively Treasurer and Asgistant Secretary of QHIO
POWER COMPANY, one of the corporations named in and which executed
the foregoing instrument, who severally ackmowledged that they did
sign and seal said instrument as such Treasurer and Assigtant
Secretary for and on behalf of said corporation and that the same
ig their firee act and deed as such Treasurer and Assistant

Secretary, respectively, and the free and ccrporate act and deed of
sald corporation.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and notarial
seal this 14th day of March, 1897.

[Notarial Seal]

Name: MARY M. SOLTESH
Notary Public, State of OChio
My Commission Expires 7-12-99




Srate of J:LGJNQJ’ i
County of foor sq

. . TH
Be it remembered, "that on thisg jgf day of March, 1997,
"personally appeared before me the undersigned, a Notary Public
within and for said County and State, THE FIRST NATTONAI, BANX OF

CEICAGO, one of the corporations named in and which executed the
Manella, one of i1ts Vice

foregoing instrumento, Richard D.
Presidents, and by tﬂla&%yA' h%?ﬁa , one of its Authorized Officers,
to me known and known by me to be sguch Vice President and

Authorized Officer, respectively, who severally duly acknowledged
the signing and sealing of the foéoregoing instrument to be their
free act and voluntary deed, and the free act and voluntary deed of
gach of them as such Vice President and »aAuthorized Officer,
respectively, and the free act and voluntary deed of said
corporation, for the uses and purposes therein expressed and

mentioned.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and nctarial
seal this /27 day of March, 1337.

L et

Notary Public, State of
My Commission Expires

[Notarial Seal]

LA R

MW
OFFICIAL SEAL  §
MARIA C BIRRUETA

RNOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSIDN F¥PRES: 11/13/00
LAAA RIS AAAARA




Exhibit A

(FORM OF FACE OF DEBENTURE)

[IF THE SERIES B DEBENTURE IS TO BE A GLOBAL DERENTURE, TNSERT
- This Debenture is a Global Debkenture within the meaning of the
Indenture hereinafter referred to and is registered in the name of
a Depository oxr a nominee of a Depository This Debenture is
exchangeable for Debentures registered in the name of a person
other than the Dep081tory‘ or i1ts nominee only in the limited
circumstances described in the Indenture, and no transfer of this
Debenture (other than a transfer of this Debenture as a whole by
the Depository to a nominee of the Depository or by a nominee of
the Depository to the Depository or another nominee of the
Depository) may be registered except in limited circumstances.

an authorized

Unless this Debenture is presented by
a New York

representative of The Depository Trust Company,
corporation {"DTC"), to the issuer or its agent for registration of
transfer; exchange or payment, and any Debenture issued ig
registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is
requested by an authorized representative of DTC and any. payment
hereon is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is
requested by an authorized representatlve of DTC, ANY TRANSFER,
PLEDGEE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO.ANY
"PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner herecf, Cede &

Co., has an interest herein.]

NO. $50, 000,000

CUSIP No.

- OHIO POWER COMPANY

7.92% JUNTOR SURCRDINATED
DEFERRABLE INTEREST DEBENTURE,
SERIES B, DUEB 2027

OHIO POWER COMPANY, a corporatiom duly organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Ohio (herein referred to as the
which term includesg any successor corporation under the

"Company ",

Indenture hereinafter referred to), for value received, hereby

promises to pay to or registered assigns, the
. Dollars ox March 31, 2027, and to

principal sum of
pay interest on said principal sum from March 18, 1997 or from the

most recent interest payment date (each such dateh an "Interest
Payment Date") to which interest has been pald or duly provided
for, quarterly (subject to deferral as set forth herein) in arrears
on each March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 commencing
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March 31, 1337 at the rate of 7.,92% per annum until the principal
hereof sghall have become due and payable, and on any overdue
principal and premium, if any, and (without duplication and to the
extent that payment of such interest 1is enforceable under
applicable law} on any overdue installment of interest at the same
rate per annum during such coverdue period. Interest shall be
computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.
In the event that any date on which interest is payable on this
Debenture is not & business day, then payment of interest payable
on such date will be made on the next succeeding day which is a
business day (and without any interest or othex payment in respect
of any such delay}, except that, 1f such business day is in the
next succeeding calendar year, such payment shall be made on the
immediately preceding business day, in each case with the =same
force and effect as if made on such date. The interest installment
sc payable, and punctually paid or duly provided for, on any
Interest Payment Date (other than interest payvable on redemption or
maturity) will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the person
in whose name this Debénture (or one or more Predecessor
Debentures, as defined in said Indenture) 1s registered at the
close of business on the regular record date for such interest
installment, [which shall be the close of business on the business
day next preceding such Interest Payment Date.] [IF PURSUANT TO
THE PROVISTONS OF SECTION 2.11(C) OF THE INDENTURE THE SERIES B

DEBENTURES ARE NO LONGER REPRESENTED BY A GLOBAL DEBENTURE -- which

shall be the cloge of business on the-March 15, June 15, September
15 or Dbecember 15 ({(whether or not a business day) next preceding
such Interest Payment Date.] Interest payable on redemption or
maturity shall be payable to the person to whom the principal is
paid. ‘Any such interest installment not punctually paid or duly
provided for shall forthwith cease to be payable to the registered
holders on such regular record date, and may be paid to the person
in whose name this Debenture (or one or more Predecessor
Debentures) is registered ‘at the close of business on a special
- record date te be fixed by the Trustee for the payment of such
defaulted interest, notice whereof shall be given to the regigtered
holders of this series of Pebentures not less than 10 days prior to
such special record date, or may be paid at any time in any other
lawful manner not inconsigtent with the requirements of any
securities exchange on which the Debentures may be listed, and upon
such notice as may be reguired by such exchange, all as more fully
provided in the Indenture. The principal of (and premium, if any)
and the interest on this Debenture shall be payable at the office
or agency cf the Company maintained for that purpose, in any coin
or currency of the United States of America which at the time of
payment 1s legal tender for payment of public and private debts;
provided, however, that payment of interest may be made at the
option of the Company by check mailed to the registered holder at
such address as shall appear in the Debenture Register.



Payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest-on
this Debenture i3, to the extent provided in the Indenture,
subordinated and subject in right of payment to the prior payment
in full of all Senior Indebtedness, as defined in the Indenture,
and this Debenture iz issued subject to the provisions of the
Indenture with respect thereto. Rach Holder of this Debenture, by
accepting the same, (a) agrees to and shall be bound by such
provisiong, (b) authorizes and directs the Trustee on his or her
behalf to take such action as may be necessgary oY appropriate to
acknowledge or effectuate the subordination. so provided and (c)
appoints the Trustee his or her attorney-in-fact for any and all’
such purposes. -  Each Holder hereof, by his or her acceptance
hereof, hereby walves all notice of the acceptance of the
subordination provisions contained herein and in the Indenture by
each holder of Senior Indebtedness, whether now outstanding or
hereafter incurred, and waives reliance by each such holder upon

said provisions.
This Debenture shall not be entitled to any benefit under the

Indenture hereinafter referred to, be valid or become obligatory
for any purpose until the Certificate of Authentication hereon

gshall have been signed by or on behalf of the Trustee.

Unlegs Che Certificate of _Authenticatioh. hereon hag been

executed by the Trustee or a duly appecinted Authentication Agent
referred to on the reverse gside hereocf, this Debenture shall not be
entitled to 4dny benefit under the Indenture or be wvalid or

obligatory for any purpose.

The provisiong of thig Debenture are continued on the reverse
gside hereof and such continued provisionsg shall for all purposes
" have the same effect as though fully set forth at this place.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Instrument to
be executed.

Dated: March 18, 1597

OHIO POWER COMPANY

By

Attest:

By




(FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION)
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

7 This ig8 one of the Debentures of the series of Debentures
described in the within-mentioned Indenture.

THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CHICAGC
ag Trustee or ag Authentication Agent

By
Authorized Signatory

(FORM OF REVERSE OF DEBENTURE)

This Debenture iz one of a duly authorized series of
Debentures of the Company (herein sometimes referred to as the
"Debentures™"), specified in the Indenture, all issued or to be
issued in one or meore serieg under and pursuant to an Indenture
dated as of Octcober 1, 1935 duly executed and delivered between the
Company and The First Natilional Bank of Chicago, a national banking
asgociation organized and exigting under- the laws of the United
Statez, as Trustee (herein referred to as the "Trustee"), as
supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture dated as of
October 1, 1885 and the Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of
1997 between the Company and the Trustee (said Indenture

March 1,

as go supplemented being hereinafter zreferred to as the

"Indenture"), to which Indenture and all indentures supplemental .

thereto reference is hereby made for a description of the rights,
obligations, duties and immunitiesg

limitations of rights,
thereunder of the Trustee, the Company and the holders of the

Debentures. By the - terms of the Indenture, the Debentures are
igsuable in series which may vary as to amount; date of maturity,
rate of interest and in other respecte as in the Indenture
provided. This geriegs of Debentures is limited in aggregate
principal amount as specified In said Second Supplemental

Indenture.

Subject to the terms of Article Three of the Indenture, the
Company shall have the right to redeem this Debenture at the option
of the Company, without premium or penalty, in whole or in part at
any time on or after March 18, 2002 (an "Optional Redemption"), at
a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus any
acerued but unpald interest to the date of such redemption (the
"Opticnal Redemption Price"). Any vredemption pursuant to this
paragraph will be made upon not less than 20 nor more than 60 days’
notice, at the Optional Redemption Price. If the Debenturesg are
only partially redeemed by the Company pursuant to an Optional
Redemption, the Debentures will be redeemed pro rata or by lot or
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by any other method utilized by the Trustee; prcvided that i1f at
the time of redemption, the Debentures are registered as a Global
Debenture, the: Depository shall determine by lot the principal
amount of such Debentureg held by each Debentureheclder to be

redeemed.

In the event of redemption of this Debenture in part only, a
new Debenture or Debenturesg of this series for the unredeemed
portion hereof will be issued in the name of the Holder hereof upon

the cancellation hereof.

In case an Event of Default, as defined in the Indenture,
shall have occurred and be continuing, the principal of all of the
Debentures may be declared, and upon such declaration shall become,
due and payable, in the mannexr, with the effect and subject to the

conditions provided in the Indenture.

The Indenture contains provisions for defeasance at any time
of the entire indebtedness of this Debenture upon compllance by the
Company with certain condltlons get forth therein.

The Indenture containg provisions permitting the Company and
the Trustee, with the consent of the Holders of not less than a
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Debentures of each
gseries affected at the time outstanding, as defined in the
Indenture, to execute supplemental -indentures for ths purpose of
adding any provisions to or changing in any manner or eliminating
any of the provigions of the Indenture or of any supplemental
indenture or of modifying in any manner the rights of the Holders
of the Debentures; provided, however, that no such supplemental
indenture shall (i) extend the fixed maturity of any Debentures of
any series, or reduce the principal amount thereof, or reduce the
rate or extend the time of payment of interest thereon, or reduce
any premium payable upcn the redemption thereof, without the
consent of .the helder of each Debenture go affected or (ii) reduce
the aforesaid percentage of Debentures, the holders of which are
required to consent to any such supplemental indenture, without the
consent of the holders of each Debenture then outstanding ang
affected thereby. The Indenture algo containg provisions
permitting the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount
of the Debentures ol all geries at the time outstanding affected
thereby, on behalf of the Holders of the Debentures of such series,
to waive any past default in the performance of any of the
covenants contained in the Indenture, or established pursuant to
the Indenture with respect to such serieg, and its conseguences,
except a default in the payment of the principal of or premium, if
any, or interest on any of the Debentures of such series.
consent or waiver by the registered Holder of this Debenture
{unlesg revoked as provided in the Indenture) shall be conclusive
and binding upon such Holder and upon all future Holders and owners
of this Debenture and of any Debenture issued in exchange herefor
or im place hereof (whether Dby regilstration of transfer or
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otherwige), irrespective of whether or not any notation of sguch
congent or waiver is made upon thig Debenture.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this
Debenture or of the Indenture shall alter or impair the obligation
of the Company,
~principal of and premium, if any, and interest on this Debenture at
the time and place and at the rate and in tha money herein

prescribed.

The Company shall have the right at any time during the term
of the Debentures, from time to time to extend the interest payment
period of such Debentures for up to 20 consecutive guarters (thes
"Extended Interest Payment Period"), at the end of which period the
Company shall pay all interest then accrued and unpaid (together
with interest. thereon compounded quarterly at the rate specitfied
for the Debentures to the extent that payment of such interesgt isg
enforceable under applicable law); provided that, during such
Extended Interegst Payment Period the Company shall not declare or
pay any dividend on, or purchase, acquire or make a ligquidation
payment with respect to, any of i1ts capital stock, or make any
guarantee payments with respect thereto. Prior to the termination
of any such Extended Interest Payment Period, the Company may
further extend such Extended Interest Payment Period, provided that
such Period together with zll such previous and further extensions
thereof shall not exceed 20 consecutive quarters or extend beyond
the maturity of the Debentures. At the - termination of any such
Extended Interest Payment Pericd and upon the payment of all
accrued and unpaid interest and any additional amounts then due,
the Company may select a new Extended Interest Payment Period.

As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain
limitations therein set forth, this Debenture is transferable by
the registered holder hereof on the Debenture Register of the
Company, upon surrender of this Debenture for registration of
transfer at the office or agency of the Company accompanied by a
written instrument or instruments of transfer in form satisfactory
to the Company or the Trustee duly executed by the registered
Holder hereof or his or her attorney duly authorized in writing,
and thersupon one or more new Debentures of authorized
denominations and for the same aggregate principal amount and
series will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.
No service charge will be made for any such transfer, bub the
Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or
other govermmental charge payable in relation thereto.

Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer of this
Debenture, the Company, the Trustee, any payving agent and any
Debenture Registrar may deem and treab Lhe registered Holder hereof
ag the absolute owner hereof (whether or not this Debenture shall
be overdue and notwithstanding any notice of ownership or writing
hereon made by anyone other than the Debenture Recgistrar) for the
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purpose of receiving payment of or on ‘account of the principal
hereof and premium, i1f any, and interest due hereon and for all
other purpecses, and neilther the Company nor the Trustee nor any
paying agent nor any Debenture Registrar shall be affected by any

notice to the contrary.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of
or the interest on thisg Debenture, or for any claim based hereon,
or otherwise in respect hereof, or based on or in respect of the
Indenture, against any incorporator, stockholder, officer or
director, past, present or future, as such, of the Company or of
any predecessor Oor sSuccessgor corporation, whether by virtue of any
constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any
agsegsment or penalty or otherwise, all such liability being, by
the acceptance hereof and as pdart of the consideration for the
igsuance hereof, expregsly waived and released.

{The Debentures of thig series are igsuable only in registered .

form without coupons in denominations of $25 and any integral
multiple thereof.] [Thigs Glckal Debenture is exchangeable for
Debentures in definitive form only under certain limited
circumstances set forth in the Indenture. Debentureg of this
series go 1ssued are issuable only in registered form without
coupong in denominations of $25 and any integral multiple thereof.]
As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations
{herein and] therein sét forth, Debentures of 'thig series [=zo
issued] are exchangeable for a like aggregate principal amount of
Debentures of this series of a different authorized denominatiocn,
‘as requested by the Holder surrendering the same.

All terms used in this Debenture which are defined in the
Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the

ITndenture.



FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby gell(g), assign(s}
and transfer(s) unto .

{PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR QTHER
IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSTIGNEER) '

(PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE -NAME AND ADDRESS, INCLUDING ZLFP CODE, OF

ASSTENEE) the within Débenture and all rights thereunder, hereby

irrevocably constituting and appointing such persgon attorney to

transfer such Debenture on the books of the Issuer, with full

power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the
name as written upon the face of the within Debenture in
every particular, without alteration or enlargement or
any change whatever and NOTICE: Signature (g8) must be
guaranteed by a financial institution that is a member of
the Securities Transfer Agents Medallion Program
{(rsTaMP"), the Stock BExchange Medallicn Program ("SEMP")
or the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. Medallion Sigrnature

Program [("MSP"}.



EXHIBIT D

DESCRIPTION OF AMOS UNIT 3 PROJECT

The Project consists of solid waste disposal and recycling, sewage facilities, and air and
water pollution control. These facilities consist of real estate, equipment and systems which
have been or will be acquired, improved, instalied, and constructed for use as solid waste
disposal or recycling facilities, sewage facilities, or air and water pollution control facilities at
Ohio Power Company’s 66.67% owned Amos Plant Unit #3 in Putnam County, West Virginia

Solid waste disposal or recycling facilities collect, process, dispose and recycle solid
wastes including, but not limited to, spent resin, fly ash, bottom ash, pyrites, flue gas scrubber
wastes, trona wastes, contaminated soil, water pretreatment wastes and other solid wastes in
accordance with applicable environmental regulations. The integrated components of the solid
waste disposal and recycling facilities consist of bottom ash and fly ash collection, handling and
disposal systems, scrubber waste collection, storage, handling and disposal systems, ash recycle
systems, ash pond or landfill improvements and closures, and certain property that is functionally
related and subordinate to the foregoing systems and components. These integrated facilities
include process equipment, utilities or support systems and related structures and buildings. The
facilities are property used for the collection, storage, treatment, handling, transportation,
utilization, processing final disposal or recycling of solid waste.

Sewage facilities collect, handle, store, treat, and discharge industrial wastewater,
sanitary wastewater, and storm water as required by applicable environmental regulations, The
integrated components of the sewage facilities include without limitation, piping, sewers,
wastewater collection systems, industrial or sanitary sewage systems, impoundments, oil/water
separators, bioreactors and treatment units, clarifiers, sludge handling systems, discharge
systems, related refinery auxiliary systems and certain property that is functionally related and
subordinate to the foregoing systems and components. These facilities also include process
equipment, utilities or support systems and related buildings and structures.

Pollution control facilities capture, reduce, and process air and water emissions including,
but not limited to, flue gases, NOx, SOx, air-bome particulate matter, wasiewater, and other
pollutants in accordance with applicable environmental reguiations. The pollution control
facilities also include functionally related and subordinate auxiliaries, utilities, structures and
buildings, associated electrical and mechanical systems, instrumentation and control systems,
and site development. Due to evolving environmental rules and regulations, any of the pollution
control systems and components may be modified or substituted with other facilities that perform
the same or similar pollution control functions.

" The capital cost of the Facilities is estimated to be no less than $239,000,000.
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AEP SYSTEM AMENDED AND RESTATED
UTILITY MONEY POOL AGREEMENT

This AMENDED AND RESTATED UTILITY MONEY POOL AGREEMENT
(" Agreement") is made and entered into this 9" day of December, 2004 by and among American
Electric Power Company, Inc., a New York corporation ("TAEP"), AEP Ulilities Inc., a Delaware
corporation (“AEP Utilities™), both registered holding companies under the Public Utility
Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended (the "Act"), American Electric Power Service
Corporation (“AEPSC”), a New York corporation and a nonutility subsidiary of AEP (in its role
as administrative agent and as a participant in the Utility Money Pool), AEP Utility Funding
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“AEPUF"), and certain of the direct or indirect
subsidiaries of AEP, each of which are signatories hereto and participants In the AEP Utility
Money Pool (“Participants™), or which subsequently become signatories hereto and agree to
abide by the terms herein. (All of the above are referred to as a Party or Parties to this

Agreement).

WHEREAS, the following entities ave each a direct or indirect subsidiary of AEP, and a
Participant in the AEP Utility Money Pool (collectively referred to herein as “Operating

Companies™):

AERP Generating Company

AEP Texas Central Company

AEP Texas North Company
Appalachian Power Company
Columbus Southern Power Company
Indiana Michigan Power Company
Kentucky Power Company

Kingsport Power Company

Ohio Power Company

Public Service Company Of Oklahoma
Southwestern Electric Power Company
‘Wheeling Power Company

And”

WHEREAS, in addition to the Operating Companies, the following are Participants in the
AEP Utility Money Pool:

American Electric Power Service Corporation
Blackhawk Coal Company

Cedar Coal Company

Central Appalachian Coal Company
Central Coal Company

Colomet, Ine,

Conesville Coal Preparation Company
Dolet Hills Lignite Company, LLC

\
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Franklin Real Estate Company
Indiana Franklin Reality, Inc.

Simco, Inc.

Southern Appalachian Coal Comparny

WHEREAS, the Participants from time to time have need to borrow funds on a short-
term basis; and

WHEREAS, some of the Parties from time to time are expected to have funds available
to [oan on a short-terrn basis; and

WHEREAS, AEF and the Parties have astablished a pool (the “Utility Money Pool") to
coordinate and provide for certain of the Participants’ short-term cash requirements;

WHEREAS, AEPUF has been formed to fund the Utility Money Pool; and
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and the mutual promises set forth

herein, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE]
CONTRIBUTIONS AND BORROWINGS

Section 1.1. Confributions to the Utility Money Pool.

American Electric Power Service Corporaiion (“AEPSC™) shall act as administrative
agent of the Utility Money Pool. Each Participant, AEP, AEP Utilities, and AEPUF will
determine on a daily basis, the amount of funds it has available for contribution to the Utility
Money Pool. The determination of whether a Party at any time has surplus funds, or shail lend
such funds to the Utility Money Pool, will be made by such Party's treasurer, any assistant
treasurer, or by a designee thereof, on the basis of cash flow projections and other relevant
factors, in such Party's sole discretion. Each Party may withdraw any of its fonds at any time

upon notice to AEPSC.

Seciion 1.2 Righis to Borrow.

. {a) Subject 1o the provisions of Section 1.4(b) of this Agreement, all short-term
borrowing needs of the Participants may be met by funds in the Utility Money Pool to the extent
such funds are available. Each Participant shall have the right to borrow from the Utility Money
Pool from time to time, subject {o the availability of funds and the limitations and conditions set
forth herein and in the applicable orders of the Securities and Exchange Commissien ("SEC")
and other regulatory authorities. Each Participant may request loans from the Utility Money
Pool from time to time during the period from the date hereof until this Agreement is terminated
by written agreement of the Parties; provided, however, that the aggregate amount of ail loans
requested by any Participant hereunder shall not exceed the applicable borrowing limits set forth
in applicable orders of the SEC and other regulatory anthorities, resolutions of such Board of
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Directors, such Party's governing corporate documents, and agreements binding upon such Party.
No Participant shall be obligated to borrow from the Utility Money Pool if lower cost funds can

be obtained from its own external borrowing.

(b)  Neither AEP, AEP Utilities nor AEPUF will borrow funds from the Utility

Money Pool or any Participant. Participants in the Utility Money Pool will not engage in lending
and borrowing transactions with participants in the Nonutility Money Pocl. The Utility Money

Pool will not borrow from the Nonutility Money Pool.

Section 1.3 Source of Funds,

()

(b

{c)

AFEPSC admimisters the Utility Money Pool by matching up, to the extent
possible, short-term cash surpluses and loan requirements of the various
Participants. Participants® requests for shoxt-term loans are met first from surplus .
funds of other Participants which are available to the Utility Money Pool. To the
extent the Participant confributions of surplus fimds (o the Utility Money Pool are
insufficient to meet Participant requests for short-term loans, AEP or AEP
Utilities may contribute corporate funds to the extent available or borrowings may
be made from external sources. Funds will be made available from such sources
in such other order as AEPSC, as administeator of the Utility Money Pool, may
determine will result in a lower cost of borrowing to companies borrowing from
the Utility Money Pool, consistent with the individual borrowing needs and
financial standing of the Parties providing funds to the Utility Money Pool.

External borrowings may be made by AEP, AEP Utilities, Inc., or AEPUF, each
individually, a Lending Party, collectively Lending Parties, from the sale of

- commercial paper notes and/or other instruments authorized by the SEC, and/or
- bank borrowings ("External Funds™), the proceeds of which would be added to the

Utility Money Pool, in each case to the extent permitted by applicable laws and
regulatory orders, All debt issued in connection with the Utility Money Pool will
be unsecured. External borrowings by AEP, AEP Utilities, or AEPUF will not be
made unless there are no surplus funds in the treasuries of the Participants
sufficient-to meet borrowing needs. If it 15 determined that AEP can borrow
money at a cheaper rate than AEPUF can, then AEP will fund the Utility Money

Poo] directly.

Each borrowing Participant will borrow pro rata from each fund source in the
same proportion that the amount of funds provided from that fund source bears to
the total amount of short-term funds available to the Utility Money Pool. On any
day, when more than one fund source (e.g., surplus treasury funds of AEP, AEP
Utilities or other Utility Money Pool participants (“Internal Funds™) and External
Funds), with different rates of interest, is used to fund loans through the Utility
Morney Pool, each borrowing party will berrow pro rata from each fiund source in
the same proportion that the amount of funds provided by that fimd source bears
to the total amount of short-term funds available to the Utility Money Pool.
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Section 1.4 Authodzation.

(a) The determination of whether a Participant or a Lending Party has at any time
surplus funds te lend to the Ultility Money Pool will be made by its treasurer, any assistant

treasurer, ot by a designee thereof.

(b}  Any loan from the Utility Money Pool to a Participant shall be authorized by the
borrowing Participant's treasurer, any assistant treasurer, or by a designee thereof. No Party shall
be required to effect a borrowing through the Utility Money Pool if such Participant determines
that it can (and is authorized te) effect such borrowing at lower cost through the sale of its own
commercial paper or other instruments, or borrowing directly from banks.

. Section_ 1.5 Investment of lInvestrnent Pool Fupds.

Funds which are loaned from Participants into the Utility Money Pool which are not
required to satisfy borrowing needs of other Participanis ("Investment Pocl") will be invested on
the behalf of the Lending Parties in one or more short-term instruments ("External Investments"),
including (i) interest-bearing accounts with banks; (i1) obligations issued or guaranteed by the
U.S. government and/or its agencies and instrumentalifies, including obligations under
repurchase agreements; (iii) obligations issued or guaranteed by any state or political subdivision
thereof, provided that such obligations are rated not less than “A” by a nationally recognized .
rating agency; (iv) commercial paper rated not less than “A-1” or “P-1” or their equivalent by a
nationally recognized rating agency; (v) money market funds; (vi) bank certificates of deposit,
(vi1) Euradollar funds; (viii) short-term debt securities rated AA or above by Standard & Poor’s,
Aa or above by Moody’s Investors Service, or AA or above by Fitch Ratings; (ix) short-term
debt securities issued or guaranteed by an entity rated AA or above by Standard & Poor’s, Aa or
above by Moody's Investors Service, or AA or above by Fitch Ratings; and (x) such other
investments as are permitted by Section 9(c) of the Act and Rule 40 thereunder.

No funds from the Utility Money Pool will be invested in EWG’s or FUCGs.

Section 1.6 Utility Money Pool Interest,

The interest rate applicable on any day to then outstanding loans through the Utility
Money Pool, whether or not evidenced by z promissory demand note, will be the composite
weighted average daily effective cost incurred by the Lending Parties for Extermal Funds
outstanding on that date. If there are no External Funds outstanding on that date, then the rate
would be the certificate of deposit yield equivalent of the 30-day Federal Reserve "A2/P2" Non-
Finapcial Commercial Paper Composite Rate (the "Composite™), or if no Composite is
established for that day, then the applicable rate will be the Composite for the next preceding day .

for which a composite is established.

If the Composite shall cease to exist, then the rate would be the composite which then
most closely resembles the Composite and/or most closely mimrors the pricing the Lending
Parties would expect if it had External Funds.
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Section 1.7 Investrment Pool Interest.

Interest income related to External Investments will be calculated daily and allocated
back to Participants on the basis of their relative contribution to the Investment Pocl funds on

that date.

Section 1.8 Repayment.

Each Participant receiving a [oan hereunder shall repay the principal amount of such foan,
topether with all interest accrued thereon, on demand and in any event not later than the
expiration date of SEC authorization for the operation of the Utility Money Pool. All loans made
through the Utility Money Pool may be prepaid by the borrower without premium or-penalty,

Section 1.9 Foum of Loans to Participants,

Loans to the Participants through the Utility Money Pool will be made pursuant to open-
account advances, although any AEPUF or Participant would at all times be entitled to receive
upon request a promissory note evidencing the transaction. Any such note shall: (a) be
substantiaily in the form attached herewith as Exhibit A; (b) be dated as of the date of the initial
borrowing; (¢) mature on demand or on a date mutually agreed to by the Parties to the
transaction, but in any event not later than the expiration date of the SEC authorization for the
‘operation of the Utility Money Pool; and (d) be repayable in whole at any time or in part from

time to time, without premium or penalty.

ARTICLE II
OPERATION OF THE UTILITY MONEY POOL

Section 2.1 Operation.

Operation of the Utility Money Pool, including record keeping and coordination of loans,
will be handled by AEPSC under the authority of the treasurer or any assistant treasurer of AEP
and/or AEPSC. AEPSC shall be responsible for the deterrnination of all applicable interest rates
and charges to be applied to any loans from the Utility Money Pool and earnings to be applied (o
any loans to the Utility Meney Pcol and/or Investment Pool outstanding at any time hereunder,
shall maintain records of all advances, inferest charges and accruals and interest and principal
payments for purposes hereof, and shali prepare periodic reports thereof for the Parties. Services
rendered by AEPSC will be “af cost™ in accordance with rules of the SEC.

Section 2.2 Certain Costs.

The cost of fees and/or compensating balances paid to banks to maintain credit lines will
be allocated to the Participants on the basis of relative maximum non-coincidental borrowings of

the Participants.
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Section 2.3 Event of Default,

If any Participant shall generally not pay its debts as such debts become due, or shail
admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally, or shall make a general assignment for the
benefit of creditors, or any proceeding shall be instituted by or against any Participant seeking to
adjndicate it a bankrupt or insolvent, then AEPSC, on behalf of the Utility Money Pool, may, by
notice to the Participant, terminate the Utility Money Pool's commitment to the Parficipant
and/or declare the unpaid principal amount of any loans to such Participant, and ali interest
thereon, to be forthwith due and payeble and all such amounts shall forthwith becorme due and
payable without presentment, demand, protest or other formalities of any kind, all of which are

hereby expressly waived by the Participant.

ARTICLE IIX
AEP UTILITIES FUNDING LLC

Section 3.1 _AEPUF.

AEPUF is a special purpose financing conduit, formed to fund the Utility Money Pool.
AEPUF may obtain funds from extermal sources or from AEP or AEP Utilities. AEP, AEP
Utilities and the Operating Companies are also authorized to fund the Ulility Money Pool-
throngh the issuance of short-term debt. AEPUF will have a separate bank account for ali Utility
Money Pool funds. AEPUF may issue commercial paper or other short-term debt for the benefit
of the Utility Money Pool participants and will lend cash proceeds of the issuance of commercial
paper lo each Participant as said Participant’s needs are identified. When AEPUF directly issues
commercial paper to dealers to fund the Utility Money Pool, each Operating Company that
borrows from AEPUF must maintain comparable debt ratings equal to or greater than AEPUTF
and maintain requisite backup facilities with one or more financial institutions.

Section 3.2 Loans.

AEPUF shall provide the cash proceeds of each issnance of commercial paper or other
shori-terrn debt fo the Utility Money Pool. The proceeds of borrowings by AEPUF will net be
loaned to AEP or AEP Utilities. The proceeds of the borrowings of AEPUF will be used to repay
AEPUF’s borrowings or be invested to continue funding the Utility Money Pool.

Section 3.3 Sewveral Liability.

It is expressly agreed that the obligations of each Participant to AEPUF are several and
not joint and, subject to paragraph 3 4 below, that each Participant shall not be resporsible to
AEPUF or any assignee or creditor of AEPUF for any payment in excess of payments due under
any Participant’s outstanding note and its pro rata share of other expenses and administrative
costs of AEPUF in connection with its funding of the Utility Money Pool. No Participant will be
liable for the borrowings of any other affiliate under the Utility Money Pool.
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Section 3.4 Placement Agents.

(2) As a condition precedent to each commercial paper dealer and placement agent
(each, a “Placement Agent”) entering into a dealer or placement agreement with AEPUF (each
such agreement, a “Placement Agreement™), each Parficipant agrees: (i) to pay all costs,
expenses, liabilities, losses and damages, including labilities in respect of the AEPUF’s
indemnification obligations under the Placement Agreements {collectively, the “Liabilities™
which it may incur relating to the offer and sale of AEPUF’s commercial paper, the proceeds of
which were used to make any Joan to such Participant under this agreement, and (i) to pay its
Pro Rata Share of all other Liabilities which AEPUF may incur other than any such Liability
which relates to the offer and sale of AEPUF’s commercial paper the proceeds of which were
used to make any [oan to any other participant in the Utility Money Pool in respect of which such
other affiliate is obligated fo pay the full amount of such Liability. As used herein the term “Pro
Rata Share” of any Liability shall mean an amount equal to the product of such Liability and a
fraction expressed as a percentage (x) the numerator of which is the average outstanding loans
mzde to the Participant during the period from the date which is three years prior to the date such
Liability is due and payable to the date such Liability is due and payable (the “Determination
Period™), and (¥) the denominator of which is the average aggregate outstanding loans made
during the Determination Period to the Pariicipant and all other Participants which received loans
from AEPUF and which are obligated to pay such Liability in accordance with this provision.

(b) Each Participant and AEPUF hereby acknowledpe and agree that sach Placement
Agent is a third-pacty beneficiary of this Article III and is entitled to the benefits of the
oblipations of each separate Participant contained in this Asticle IIl and is entitled to bring any
action to enforce such obligations directly against the separate Participant, In the case of any
spectfic Liability arising out of or in connection with the Placement Agreement, each Participant
shall pay the amount of such Participant’s Liability direcily to such Placement Agent or as the

Placement Agent directs.

(c) ~ This Article I shall not be amended or modified without the pror written
consent of each Placement Agent. The agreements and obligations of each of the Participants set
forth in this Article [T1 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE IV
MISCELLANEOTUS

Section 4.1 Amendments.

No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless the same be in writing and
signed by all Parties thereto.
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[ Section 4.2 Lepgal Responsibility,

Nothing herein contained shall render AEP or any Party liable for the obligations of any
other Party(ies) hereunder and the rights, obligations and liabilitics of AEP and the Parties are
several in accordance with their respective obligations, and not joint.

Section 4.3 Goveming Law,

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the
State of New York.
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N WITNESS WHEREOQF, the undersigned Parties have duly caused this document to be
signed on their behalf on the dafe first written above by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized,

AMERICAN ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY, INC.
and
AE? UTILITIES, INC.
AEP UTILITY FUNDING LLC
AMERICAN ELECTRIC POWER SERVICE CORPORATION, as
Agent and Participant
Participanis:
AEP GENERATING COMPANY
AEP TEXAS CENTRAL COMPANY
AEP TEXAS NORTH COMPANY
APPALACHIAN POWER COMPANY
COLUMBUS SOUTHERN POWER COMPANY
INDIANA MICHIGAN POWER COMPANY
KENTUCKY POWER COMFPANY
KINGSPORT POWER COMPANY
OHIO POWER COMPANY
PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF OKLAEOMA
SOUTHWESTERN ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY
WHEELING POWER COMI'ANY

BLACKHAWK COAL COMPANY

CEDAR COAL COMPANY

CENTRAL APPALACHIAN COAL COMPANY
CENTRAL COAL COMPANY

COLOMET, INC.
CONESVILLE COAL PREPARATION COMPANY

DOLET HILLS LIGNITE COMPANY, LLC
FRANKLIN REAL ESTATE COMPANY
INDIANA FRANKLIN REALTY, INC.

SIMCO, INC.
SOUTHERN APPALACHIAN COAL COMPANY

By: /{) oy b JJM/W

AsswtamJTreasurer of eash
of the above-listed companies.
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1
EXHIBITA
FORM OF UTILITY MONEY POOL NOTE
TO BE EXECUTED BY BORROWING PARTIES
TO AEP OR OTHER PARTIES
,20
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, (the "Borrower"),
hereby promises to pay to the order of (the "Lender"} at its principal

office in , on demand or on , 20__, or at the
option of the Borrower, whichever first oceurs, but in any event not later than the expiration date
of the SEC authorization for the operation of the Utility Money Pool, the principal sum set forth
on the attachment hereto as "Principal Amount Outstanding.” This note may be paid in full at
any time or in part ffom time to time without premivm or penalty. The Principal Amount
Outstanding shall bear interest at the composite weighted average daily effective cost incurred by
the Lending Parties for External Funds outstanding on that date. If there are no External Funds
outstanding on that date, then the rate would be the CD yield equivalent of the 30-day Federal
Reserve "A2/P2" Non-Financial Commercial Paper Composite Rate (the "Composite™), or if no
Composite is established for that day, then the applicable rate will be the Composite for the next

preceding day for which a Composite is established.

This Note shall be governed by, and construed and interpreted in accordance with, the
Laws of the State of New York.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, pursuvant fo due awthorization, has caused
this Note to be executed in its name and on its behalf by its duly authorized officer.

(Name of Borrower)

MName:
Title:
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